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To: The Boards ofDircctors ofHousing & Development Bank "Egyptian Joint Stock Companv"

Int roduction

Scope of limited review

We conducted our lirnited review in accordance with dre Eryptian Standard on Review Engagements (2410)
"Lirnited Review oflnterirn Financial Statements Performed by the independent Auditor ofthe Entity". A limited
review ofinterinr consolidated financial statements consists of making inquiries, plimarily of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters in the bank, and applying analyical and other limited review procedures. A
lirnited revierv is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Egyptian Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become arvare ofall significant
matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, rve do not express an audit opinion on tlrese interim
consolidated fi nancial statements.

Conclusion

Based on our limited revierv, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
interim consolidated financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Bank as of 30 September 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the nine rnonths then ended, in accordance rvith rules ofpreparation and presentation ofthe banks'
financial statements and basis of recogn ition and measurement issued by the Central Bank of Egypt on December
I6. 200E as amended by the regulations issued on February 26,2019 and in the light ofthe prevailing Egyptian
larvs arrd regulations related to the preparation of these interim consolidat s.
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We have performed a limited review ofthe accompanying interim consolidated financial statements ofHousing
antl Developmcnt Bank "Egyptian Joint Stock Cornpany" which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of 30 Septernber 2023 and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income, cash flows, and changes in equiq, for the nine months then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation ofthese interim consolidated financial statements in accordance with the rules of preparation and
p[esentation of tlre banks' tlnancial statements and the basis ofrecognition and measurcmer)t issued by the Central
Bank of Egrpt on Decernber I 6, 2008 as amended by the regulations issued on February 26, 20 l9 and in the light
oi'the prevailing Egyptian larvs and regulations related to the preparation ofthese interirn consolidated financial
statements. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these interim consolidated financial statements based
on our limited review.



Housing And Development Bank
Consolidated Financial Position
As ofl0 Seplember 2023
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Housing And Deyelopment Bank
Consolidated Income Statement
For Thc Nine lltonths Ended 30 Seplember 2023
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Housing And Development Bank
Consolidat€d StaIem€nt of Cash Flow
For The Nine I\Ionths Ended 30 Scptember 2021
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Housing And Dcvclopment Bank
l{ot€s To The Consolidated Financial Statements
For Thc f{ine }lonrhs Endcd J0 September 202J

l. Brckqround

Housing and Development bank provides Banking Services for Corporatcs rather lhan Invcshenrs, retail Banking Services
in the Arab republic of Eglpt through 99 branches. and hires 2909 employees ar rhe date oflhe financial posirion.

Housing and Developmenr bank is an Egyptian Joinl Slock company established as lnvesrmenrs and Business Bank on l0
June 1979 by vinuc. mtnisterial Decree No 147 for a year 1979 and it handles irs acrivily rhrough the head oflice in Ciza
govemorate and lhe bank is Itsred in the Egyprtan Slock Marker for Securilies.

2. Summan ofSipnifica nI Accounline Policics

The pnncipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of rhese financial statemenrs are sel out below' These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presenred, unless otherwise slaled

,\. Basis of Prcparation
The financial slalements have been prepared in accordance with instructions of Cenrral bark of Eg)?t approved by its
board ofdirectors on l6 December 2008, in addition to the historicalcosr basis, modified by the revaluatior offinancial
assels and liabilirres originally valued wilh fair value through profits and losses, and financial assels ar fair value through
other comprehensive income, and all llnancial derivatives contracls.

These consolidaled financlal statements have been prepared in accordance wilh relcvant local laws, investment in
assoclates have been presented in bank's consolidaled financial sratemenrs and measured uslng equily method less
irnpairment loss.

These coDsolidaled financEl statemenls have been prepared until fl December 2009 using cenrral banl of Egypr
inslructions Prevatling until this date. this panially drffer from the banks preparation and presenrations rules and rhe
recognition and measuremenl basis appmved by central bank of Egypt's board of dlrectors on l6 December 2008. At lhe
dale of the preparalion of consolidaled financial statements dated ll December 2010. the bank's managemenr has
amended cenain accountrng policies and basis ofnleasurements to be in accordance wirh the preparation and presenlalion
requiremenli and the recognition and measurements basls ofbank consolidated financial stalements approved from the
central bank of EglU s board ofdireclors on l6 December 200E.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance wllh the insrruclions ofthe Cenlral Bank of
Egypt (CBE) rules approved by its Board of Direcrcrs on Jl December 20lE; rhar is differ \vilh whar is added under
instruclions ofCentral Bank ofEgypl issued on 26 February 2019 regarding rhe implernenlalron ol'IFRS 9 financial
lnstruments ,

Effert of impleme'lt.tion IFRS 9 o[ Accountins Policies
IFRS 9- Financi.l Ittstruments

The Bank applied the insEuctions of lhe Central Bank of Egypt (CBE) rules IFRS 9 "Financial lnstrumenrs" daled
26.February 2019 staning from January 01. 2019, Requiremens of IFRS 9 represents nlarerial change tlran required
under Egyplian accounling standard no. 26 "financial instrumenl- rccognilion and measuremenl 'specially when related
lo classificalion, measurement and disclosure offinancial assets and some offinancial liabiliries, rhe following summarize
the main accounting policies changes resulted fiom applying the required srandards:

Classilicstion of finrnciel lssets rnd liabilities
Financial assets have becn classified through tkee matn categories as rhe followin8:
- Financial assets ar amortized cost.
- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.
- Financial asses at fair value through profit and loss.
Based oflFRS 9, financial assers have been classified according to how rhey are managed (rhe enrirys business model)
and their con(ractual cash flow characteristics. Therefore Egyptian accounling standard no. (26) is no longer applied
(Held to maturily, Loans and avarlable lbr sale).

The implicil detivalive contracts shall not be separaled when derlvatives are associated wllh a financial asser and therefore
the implicit derivative contract is fully classitied accordrng lo the related financial asset.

The change in financial liabllilies al fair value through profir or loss is presenled as followsi
- The change in the fair lalue related to the change in rhe degree of the credit rating is presented in other
comprehensive income.

'7



Housing And Development Bank
Notes To The Consolidated Financial Stat€ments
For The \ine iUonths Ended 30 September 2023

- The remaining amount ofthe change in fair value under (net income from financial assers ar fair value through
profit or loss) is presented rn the tncome statement.

Imnairm€nt of finanrial rssels
IFRS 9 and Central Bank ofEgypl (CBE) instructions replaced the impairment loss model recomized according to EAS
26 w(h expected credit loss (ECL) model. also, IFRS 9 & CBE instructions requires from the bank ro implement lhc
measurement ofexpected credrt loss (excepl for measured at fair value through profit and loss and fair value through
other comprehensive incorne)

The bank excludes the following liom the calculation ofexpected credir Iosses:
Deposits at banks with a marurity date ofone month and less than the date ofthe fihancial positton.
Currenl accounts at banl(s-
Balances at the Centml Bank in local currency
Debt inslruments issued by the Egyptian govemment in local currency.
Provision shall be identified based on the expected credit losses relating to probabiLty ofdefaulr over the next 12 monrhs
unless the credit risk has increased substantially since inceptron.

Seqmenl reDorting
An operating scgment rs a group of assets and operattons providing products or services whose risks and benefits arc
drfferent from those associated with producls or services provided by other operating segments A geographlcal sestnenl
provides products or services within a speclfic economic environment characterized by risks and benefits dift'ercnt from
those related to other geographical segments operating in a differenr economic environment.

Transitional Dro!isions
The bank has not re-measured the recognized financial instruments in the comparatlve financial statements. but only
reclassified the linancial assets and liabilities in the comparative figures to conforh with the presentation method ofthe
financial statements. subject to applying the standard for the first time and is therefore not comparable.
The impaimrent provision ofthe financial assets recognized in the financial position is deducted fiom the hnancialasset
value at the time ofpreparing the linancial position statemenl, while lhe rmpalrmenr provision oflhe loan commitmenrs.
financial guarantee contracts and continsent liabilrties ls recognized under other provisions of financial positron
obligations

B. Rasisof Dresentationofconsolidation
Subsidiarics

Subsidianes companies are conlrolled by rhe bank, control exists when the bank has the power directly or indirectly to
govem the financral and operating policles ofan entity (o oblain benefits from its acd\ities This is usually achieved when
the bank owns. directly or indirectly. through subsidiaries, more than halfofthe voting porver ofan entiry (when the
bank's shareholding portion exceeding directly or indirectly 50% of the paid up capital ol the subsidiary). the existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are cuEently exercisable or convertible are considercd when assessing whelher
the Croup has control

The Croup fully consolidates its subsidiaries fiom the effective date in which conrrol is obtained and deconsolidates them
when such control ceases to exist.

lnfonnation on subsidianes is set out below for companies which are combined in the bank's consolidated financial
statements as of30 September 2023.
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Housing And Develo pment Bank
\otes To'l'h€ Consolidated Financial Stet€menls
For The Ninc llonths Ended 30 Scprembcr 2021

llolding company for lnlesrment and Dcvelopmcnt
Housing and developnlent company for real-estate investment
El-Tameer company for Edancial and real estate investment banking
Hemaya company for Cities. Tourist Resons and Real Eslate
EI-Tanreer company for real eslate and tourislic asset lvlanagement
Real estate development firnd - Nemmo
Information and electronical taansactions servtces company
El-Tameer company for real estate developmenl alld investment
Hemaya company for securiry and money transfer
HD for leasing

Direct & indirect
share 7o

92"/"
91.96.h
91.2tJyo
t5,920/0
62,62"h
93,E7y"
E6,920
92,71Vo
91,82yo
91.10.

Brsir ofCombinetiong
During the preparation ofconsolidared financial statemens, the bank combines rhe consolidaled llnancial sralemenr rvilh
subsidiary comPar fsimilar items ofassets, liabilities, owner's equij,
revenues and expe linancial statemenl as ofone business unit. going
through following alstaremenr:
- Eliminalion ofrhe book value for invesrmenrs in subsidiary company according ro Equiry method, includrng share

ofholding company in the equiry ofeach subsidiary company.
- Non-conlrolling interest in profiL/ loss ofsubsidiaries is considered during lhe fiscal year rn rhe preparation ofthe

financial repnns.
- Non-conlrolling inlerest in net assets of the subsidiaries ts delennined durinB the preparation of consoldaled

financial statements and presented in rhe consolidated financrat statements in the'orrrer's equiry oi hoi,ll;;
company.

- Eliminarion ofall inrenelared revenues and berween rhe subsidiaries wirhin rhe group_- Elimination ofall balances resuhed fiom I en rhe subsrdiaries wrrhin rhe groui alio group
transactions rncluding revenues, expenses a elimination ofall revenues andlossis resulietl of
such ransacrions ard recognized in tbe assets value.

- The financial stalemenls are presented using same accounting policies for similar transactions and same evenls unrier
same ctrcumstances,

B.2. Associ{te!
According lo lhe equily mcthod, an inveslment in an associate is initially recognrzed in the statenrnt offinancial position
at cosl and is subsequenlly adjusled lo recognize the Croup's share in profil or loss, and other changes rn lhe net assets,
ofthe associate.

C. Trrnllrtiol of Foreiu Curretrcler
C.l. Functional 0nd preientation currencv
The financial statemenls are paesented in Eg)?liao pound, which is lhe bank's functional and presentatron currency.

d transactions are recorded in foreign currencies during the financral
yeal on the basis ofptevailing exchan8e rales at the dale ofthe transactron. monetary assets and liabilirie;denominaled
in foreign currencies are retaamlated al t-he end ofthe financial year on the basis ofpr;\,ailing exchange rales at that date
ForeiSn exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement and rranslarion ol'such transactions and balances arc
recognized in the income statement and reponed under the follou,ing items:

' Net income from fihancial assets at fair value through profit and loss/or ner income ftom tinancial instruments
classlfied al fair value through profit and loss at lhe date ofinceplion ofrhe assets/liabilities or lhose classified al the
date of inceprion wirh iB fair value rhrough profils and losses according to rheir rype

' Shareholders'equily of financial derivarives as a coverage for cash florv/nct investmenr or as a coverage for nel
lnvestmenl,

. Other operating income (expeoses) for the orher item-s

' Changes in fair value offinancial instruments denominated in forergn cunency classified at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt insrrumens) is analyzed between valuarion diflerences tiom changes in amoniied cost
of the insnument, differences resulred ftom changes in the prevailing cxchange rates, diffeiences resuked liorh
changes in the fair value ollhe instrumenl, ahd diflbrences resulled from lhe impairment ofthe financral assels. Those
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changes are tecognized in the income statement as income on loans and similar items regarding changes in amortized
cost and differences related to changes in the exchange rate are recognized as other operaring income(expense).
changes tn fair value are recognized in equity(Other comprehensive income/Financlal assers at fair value through
other profit and loss).

Evaluation differences resuhing from non-monetary items include profit and loss resulting fiom changes in farr value
such as equity instruments held al fair value through profrt and loss, rvhile evaluation differences resuliure ftont equrty
lnstrumenls classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized as other
comprehensive income.

ll Einancial Assets
D.l. Rccognilion

The Bank classifies its financial assels into the following categories: fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) and amorttzed cost. Managemenl determines the classificarion of its
investhenrs at initial recognrrion-

D.2. Classilication
FiDancial rs\cts Policies aDolied startinp from.I uarr'01.2019:

At the lime ofinitlal recognition. the bank delermines the classificaLion of financial assets to be classified as aotorlized
cost, fair value through other comprehetrsive rncome (FVTOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTpL)_

Financial asset classified as amortized cost if the following two conditions are met and was not recognized at inception
date by the bank as fair value through profit or loss:
_ The financial asset is retained in fte business model o f financia L assets held !o collect contractual cash flow.
- Tle conlractual terms ofthe financial asset at specific dates result in contractual cash flows ofthe asset represenred

only in the principal financial instrument amount and the retum_

Financial assets classified as fair value through other comprehensive income ifthe following two conditions are met and
was nol recognized al inception date by the bank as fair value through profit or loss:
- The financial asset is retained in the business model of financial assets held to collecr conlractual cash tlows and

sales.

- The contractual terms ofthe financial asset at sp€cific dates result in contractr.ral cash flows ofthe asser represenred
only in the principal financial instrument amount and the retum

The debt instrument that was not allocated at the initial recognition at the fair value through profit or loss ls measured
at the fak value through other comprehensive income ifboth ofrhe following conditions ate mer:
The financtal asset is retained rn the business model that arms to collect contractual cash flows and sell the financial
asse1.

The contractual terms ofthe financial asset on specific dates resuh in cash florvs ofthe asset and not represcnted
only the principal debt and the retum.

Upon the initial recognition ofan equty instrunenl thar nor held at fair value throueh profit and loss. lhe bank may
make an irevocable choice to present subsequent changes in the fair ralue throueh the olher comprchensile income
statement. This choice shall be made for each investment individually
The remaining financial assets are classified as investments at the falr value rhrough profir or loss.

ln addition, upon the inrtial recognltion, the bank may irrevocably allocate a financial asset measured ar the falr value through
profit or loss, although it meets rhe criteria of classjfication as a financial asset at amortized cost or at th€ fair value
through other conrprehensive income, if this actron substantially reduces the inconsistency that may arise in the
accountrng measulement,

10
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Business models Eveluaaion
Followi debl and instruments are classified and measured accordi to the followi

2) The bank prepares, documeDts and approves a business model in accordance with rhe requiremenrs ofthe IFRS 9 rn
that reflects the Bank's strategy lo the financral assels and thcir cash flows as follo$!:

The bank shall evaluate lhe business model goals on $e ponfolio's level in which the financial asset is retained, being the
way that reflects both the melhods of work management and information provided The information to be take into
consideiation while evaluating the business model goals include the following:

- The approved and documented policies and the objeclrves ofthe ponfolio in additron to applyrng such pohcies in
pmctical rcality, specially whether the managemenl stElegy focuses only on collectint the conlJ-actual cash flo\r,s
of the asset and retaining a cenain terum rate lo meet the dales of fitrancial assers' maturiry wilh thc drtcs of the
liabilities' maturity that are funding such assets; or mther on generating cash flows thmu8l sellin8 such assers.

- The method ofevaluating rhe ponfolio's performance and reponing the same to the rop m:rnagemenl.

ll

!lethods of Measurement According to the Business
Model

Financirl Instrumcnt

Fair Yalue
Amortizcd Cost Through

Compr€hensive
Income

Through Profil or Loss

Equity lnstruments One-time rrrevocable
choice at the iniral
recognrllon

Normal transacrion ol- equily

Dcbl lnstruments Business model ofassets held to
collect contractual cash flows.

Business model of
assets held to collect
contractual cash flows
and sale.

Business model of assets
held for trading

Financial Asset Business llodel Basic Characteristics
Finencial asscls at amortized cost Business model of

financial assets held ro
collect contractual cash
flows

. The business model is aimed ro retain the
financral assets to collecl lhe contractual cash
l'lorvs of the investlnent principal anlount and
the revmues.

. The salc is an exceprional aclion comparing
to lhe purpose ofthis modeland the tenns olthe
standard represented in the d€terioration in thc
credirwonhiness of the financial insrrumcnl
rssuer.
. l-ess sales in terms offrequency and value
. The bank performs a clear and reltable
documentation of the ratronale of each sale
process and is compliance wirh the
requiremenls of the Standard

Finrncial asscts el [air !alu€
lhrough comprchcnsive income

Business modelof
financial assers held for
the collection of
contradual cash flows
and sale.

. Both the collection of contractual cash

flows and sales are complementary ro rhe

objective of the model
. Sales are hrgh (in tenns ol liequency and
value) compared to the busrness model held tbr
the collection of conracrual cash flows

Financial ass€ts at fair Yalue
throuBh profit or loss

Orher business models
include (rading -
managing the linancial
assels bAsed on fair value
- maximizin8 cash flows
through sale)

. The bushess model is not ained to reratn
the linancial a5set for the collection o[
contractual or this retained for the collection of
conlmctual cash flows and sales
. Collcclrng contmclual cash flows rs an

exceptional action comparing to the model
objecrive.
. Managing the financial assets at lhe fair
value through profit or loss lo avoid
inconsrslency in accountng measLrrctncnt
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- The risks affecting the business model performance rncluding the nature oflthe financial assets retained wirhin
such odel and the method ol'nEnaging such flsks

- The method ofevaluating the performance ofwork managers (fair value and-/ or rerums on the portfollo).
- Frequency. value and timings ofsales' tmnsactions in the previous periods, the reasons olsuch transactions; as

l*ell as the expectations regarding the future sale activities However, the lnformation ol'the sales' actlvities are
not taken lnto consideration in isolation., bul rather as a pafl of a comprehensive evalualion of the medod of
carrying out the banl's goals regarding managing financial assets and how cash flows are genetated

The financial assets, which are retained for the purpose oftrading or those which are managed and evalualed based on thc lair
value. are calculated by the fair value through profits and losses because they are not rctained for the purpose ofcollecting
contractual cash flows and/ or selling financial assets.

Evaluating whether $e asset's con(ractual cash flows represent payments rhal are onl), hmitcd to the origlnal amount ofthe
instrumenl and the retum

For the purpose ofcarrying oul this e\aluation, the bank defines the original amounl ofthe firrancial instrument as the
fair value ofthe financial assel al inilial recognlhon. The retum is delined as the consideratron olthe lime valuc olntoney.
the ctedil risks atlached to the original amount during a cenain penod oftrme, other basic lending risks and costs (such
as the risks of Iiquidiry and admrnisralive cosrs), and profir margin.
For the bank to detemrine whe$er the asset's contmctual cash flows are payments lhat are limited to tlte assel and retum
on the financial instrument. the bank puts the cotrtractual terms of rhe instrument into coDsrderation This includes
evaluatrng whether the fiflancial instrumenl includes contractual terms that may change the liming or amount of
contractual cash flows, which may lead to non-acceptance ofsuch terms
For the purpose ofcarrying out the above evaluation, the Bank needs to take the following into considerationi

- Potential evenis that may change the liming or amounl ofcontractual cash flows;
- Characteristics ofthe financial leverage (rare ofrerum. time limirs. currency )
- Terms ofprompt payment and extension of time limtsi
- The terms that may hmits bank's abilily to claint cash flows from certain assels.
- The characteristics that may amend the consideration ofthe time value ofmoney (re-esrimating the retum rare on

a periodical basis)

The bank does not reclassily groups of financial assets unless the business model is changed, which rarely happens. or does
not happen excepl infrequently or when the credit capacitv ofone ofthe debt instruments declines at amonized cost

E. Ollsettinq between Firlatrcirl ltrstruments
Financial assets and Iiabilities are offset when the bank has a legally enforc€able right to offset rhe recognized amonnts
and il tends to se(l€ thrs amount on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liabiliry sinrultaneously

Repos and reverse repos agreements related to treasury bills are netted on the balance sheet and disclosed under'rrcasury
bills and other govemmental notes" caption ofthe balance sheet.

ir atives lnstruments and he accounti
. Derivalives are inirially recognized at fair value on the date on w,hich a derivativc conrract is entered inro and are

subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained fiom quoted marker prices in aclive markels.
including recent rnarkel transactions, and valuation techniques. including discounted cash now rnodels and options
pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilrties when
fair value is negative.

. Enrbedded derivatives are not isolated if they were included in a financial instrument that falls under the financial assets

definition as per IFRS 9 "Flnancial Instruments.

. Recognizing the profits and losses resulted fiom the fair value depends on rvhether the derivative is a covering
rnstrumenl provision and accordlng to the narure ofthe covered item, the bank classifies some of the derivative5 as one

ofthe followrng:
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. Risk Hedging of the fair value ofrecognized assets and liabilities or confirmed commitments (fair value hcdging)

. Risk hedging of future highly expected cash flows related to a recognizes asset or liability or related to an expected
transaction (cash flows hedging)

. Hedging accounting is used forprovlsion denvatlve for that purpose if the needed conditions are avallable

. At the initiation of the transaction the bank documents the relations belween the covered ltems and hedging
instruments, also thc objectives ofrisk management and the strategy ofhaving drfferent hedging transactions- At the
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beginning ofhedging ard consciously, the bank documenrs the estimation ofwhefier the derivarive used in hedging
transaclrons are effective in facing rhe changes in the fair value or cash flows ofthe covered items.

F.l. Fair vrlue hedsitrq
The changes in the fair value ofqualified dcrivatives provisions for hedging oflhe fair value are recognized in rhe income
slatemenl. lhrs with any change in the fair value relared ro rhe risk ofthe covered asser or liabiliry

The effective changes in lhe fair value of retum lransfers conuacts and the relaled hedged items are added to lhe ncl
retum and effective changes in the fair value ofthe future currency contracts are added to net income from llnancial
assels al falr talue lhrough profit and loss.
Inefficiency in all ofthe contsacts aDd the related hedged irems mentioned in the previous paragraph are added ro rhc nct
rncome from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.

lfrhe hedging is no longer following the hedging accounring procedures, rhe modification added to the book value ofrhe
hedged ilems recorded by the amortized cost method. this is through charging it against the profirs and losses along rhe
year till its maturity. Amendments in hedged equily insrrument's book value remain r*ithin rhe shareholders'equity lill
it has been excluded.
F.2. Crsh flons hedgins
The eflective pan in the changes in lhe hir value ofrhe qualilied derivative prorision to hedge rhe cash llo$.s is
recognized as sharcholden' equity. while the profit and losses related to the ineffective pan are recognized rmmedrarcly
as (net income ftonr financial assets at fair valuc lhrough profit and loss) in lhe income stalentent

The amounts accumulated in the shareholders' equrty are transferred lo lhe income statemenr in lhe same period lhal rhe
hedSed item has an effect on profils ard losses, prolits and losses relatcd to the effecrive part offie cunency lransfers
and options are added ro the net financial assets at fair value through profit and loss irem

When the hedging instrument is being due or sold, or when the hedging is no longer following the hedging accounling
procedures. the profits and losses accumulated in the shareholders' equity in that rime remain within the shareholders'
equity item and rl is recognized in fie income stalement when the expecled transactron rs finally recogrized. Bul if lhe
expected ransaction is no longer expecred to occur then (he profits and losses accumulated in the shareholders' equity
are inrmediately lransfered to the income stalement.

C. RecoEnizitrq lirst dar's deferred prolits .nd losscs:
Regarding lhe tools thal evaluate the fair value. lhe tmnsaclt)n price is considered lo be the besl instrument lo eyaluate
lhe fair value on the transaclion date(fair value ol delivcred or recei\'ed relum) unless the falr Yalue ol'lhe inslrunlenl on
that date is rndicared depending on dle transaction's prce in published market or using evalualion modules whcn the

bank has a long rerm transadion. its fair value is specificd using evaluation modules that their rnpuls ma! nor all be frorn
the published market rales or prices, those t-inancial instruments are recognzed accordlnS lo transaction price which is

the best indicarion ofthe fair value Although the value calculated from evaluation modules lnay be different. anr.l the

drfference between the transaction price and the amount resuhed from the module is not immediately recognized as first
day's profits and losses and it is listed as other assels in the case ol loss, and as other liabililies in the casc ofprolil. The
timing of recognizing the deferred profit and loss is specilled separately for each case through rts amonizalion on the

lransaction or when ir is possible to identify the instrument s fair value using published nlarket's inputs or by approvilg
it when ad.Jusring the transactions, the instruments is measured by the fair value, the subsequenl changes in the lair !aluc
are rrnnediately recoSnized in the income statenlenl.

H, Intercst lncome and Exoense
Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financral instruments, except for those classified as financial assets

designated at fair value through profit or loss, are recognized within 'interesl income' and 'interesl expense inlheincome
stalement using the effective interest method. The effective interesl melhod is a method ofcalculati.g the amortized cosl
ofa financial asser oa a financial liability and ofallocating the interesl income or interest expense over the relevanl year
The effective intercst mre is the rare lhar exactly discounts estimated furure cash paytuents or receipts throu8h the
expected life ofthe financial instrumenl or, when appropriate. a shoner year to the net carryint amounl of the financial
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F.3. Unoualified derivative of hedeinq rccoutrtins
Changes in the fair value ofthe unquahfred derivarives of hedgiDg accounting are being recognized in the (ner inconle
fronr tinancial assets at fair value through profil and loss) ilem. ln the incorre statement, the prolits and losses resulted
from the changes in rhe fair value is recogrized as (net rncome ofclassified fiDancial instrumenG valucd by the fair !'alue
of profits and losses). thrs rs through the profils and losses resulted from lhe changed in the fair ralue of derirati\es
managed in relation to the classified assels and liabrlities at farr r'alue through pmfils and losses.
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assel or financial liabiliry When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms ofthe financial instrument (forexample. prepaymenl oplions) but does notconsider furure credil losses
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or rcceived between panies to the conrracr rhal are an inregral pan ofrhe
effective interest rate, transaction cosls and all orher premiums or discounts. Interest income on loans is recognized on
accrual basis excepl for the interest income on non-performing Ioans, which ceases lo be recognized as revenue when the
recovery ofinterest or pnnciple is in doubl and are rather recorded offbalance sheet as follows:

When il is collected and this is after redeen)ing all dues ol'consunrcr loans and personnel mortgages also small loans
for economic activities
For corporalc loans, interesl ircome is recognized on a cash-basis atler lhe bank collecrs 25 ok of the reschedulcd
inslalments and when these installments continue to be paid for at least one year. lfa loan continucs to be perfomllng
thereafler. interest accrued on rhe principal then outstanding stans to be recognized in revenues. Interest that is wrilen
off prior to the date when the loan beconres performing is not recognized in profit or loss except when the toul
balance ofloan, prior to that date, is paid in full.

I. Fees and Commissions
Fees charged for servicing a loan or faciliry, are recognized as reveDue as the service is proyided. Fees and commissions
on non-performing or impaired loans or receivables cease to be recognized as income and are rather recorded offbalance
sheet. These are recognized as revenue - on the cash basis - only when interest income on those fees and conrnlissions
lhat are an integral pan ofthe effective inlerest rate ofa financial asset are treated a5 adjusrment ro lhe effective inlerest
rale ofthat financial asset.

Conmilment fees recerved by the bank to originate a loan are deferred if it is probable that the bank will enr!'r tnto n

specific lending anangement and are regarded as a courpensation for an ongoing involvemenr \r'ith the acquisrlion oflhe
financial instrument and recognized as an adjustment to the e(Iective interesl rate. lfthe commirmenr expires $ithout lhe
bank makint the loan. the fees are recognized as revenue on exptry.
Fees relaled to debt instruments which are measured at fair value are recognized under revenue al inilial recognition. The
fees for promorion ofjoinr loans are recognized within revenues upon completing thepromotion process without retalning
any parl of lhe loan by the bank, or if the bank nrainlains a part lhereof with lhe actual interest rate available to other
panlcrpants.

Fees and comnrrssions lhat are eamed on negotiatinS or paflicipating in lhe negolialion ofa transacrion in t'avor ofanothcr
enlity, such as aranSernents for the allorment of sharcs or anorher linancial instrument or acquisition or sale ol an
enterprise on behalfofa client. are recogrized as revenue when lhe lransaction has been corrpleled Adnrinislralive
consullations and other sen'ice fees are usually recognrzed as revenue on a straight-line basis o\er the year in uhich lhc
service is rendered. Fees ftom financial planning managehent and cusrodian sen'ices provrded ro clicnrs over long ycar
are usually recognrzed as revenue on a straight-line basis o\er rhe year in \ hich lhese sen,ices are re dcred

J. Dividerds
Dividends are recog zed in the income stalement when the bank's righl to receive payment is established

Financial instruments sold under repurchase agreements, are not derecognized from the books. These are shou,n in lhc
assels side as an addilron to the treasury bills and other govemmental notes" line item in thc balance sheel On the otllcr
hand. the bank's obhgation arising fron financial instruments acquired under resale agreements. is sho\rn as a deduclitrr)
liom lhe 'lreasury bills and olher govemmenlal noles" line ilem in the balance sheet Ditlerences bet\rccn the scllrnB and

repurchase price or between the purchase and resale price is recognized as interest expense or inconre throughoul lhc vcar
ofagreements using the effective inlerest rate method

L. lmprlrment of Firlrncial Ass€ts
The bank assembles debt instruments ln groups wilh similar credit risks based on: the type ofthe banling producl as per

lhe retail product, lhe clients as per the corporate loans, and the recognized credit agency's classifications as per the

balances at banks and sovereign debt.
The bank classilies debt instruments iflto three phases based on lhe quantilrvely and qualitative criteria provided in lhe
(Central Bank of Egn0 CBE's instructions issued on Feb 25, 2019

The bank estimates- on the date offinancial statemenls. the provision ofthe financial instnrrnent's impairmenl losses for
al a value that is equal to lhe expecled credil losses (ECLS) for the Lfetime ofthe financial instrument. ercepl for the debt
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inslruments wirh low credit risks or otherwise debt instruments whose credit risks did nor significanrly increase. ar rhe
financial posiriorl date. slnce the inilial recognilion.
The bank conslderc ECI-S to be a potential weighted eslimarion ofECLs, which are estimared as follows:

ECLs are estimated in the first phase by calculating lhe cunenr value of the roral cash dcficir calculated based on rhe
historic probability ofdefauh rates as amended by the expectations of macro-econonric scenarios' average that would be
lhe rates ofeconomic growth. inflarion and unemployment for twelve months as per the debt instruments in the lirst phase
or lhe lifetime ofthe asset as per the second phase.

As per the credit-impaired debt instruments (third phase), ECLs are calculated based on rhe drfference belween the asser's
total book balance and the current value oflhe future expected cash flows.

Conrmitments related to loans and financial guaranlees are considered as among the default value $,hen calcularcd
ECLS arc calculated for the contmcts offinancial guarantees based on the difference berween the payments cxpected lo
bc paid to the guarantee holder less anv other amounts that the Bank expects to redeent

The bank shall not move the financial assel from the second phase lo lhe first phase unless all the quanlilive and qualitallvc
elements oflhc first phase are me!

Finrncial rssets z1 frir velue through the olher cornprehenlive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through the olher comprehensive incorne, whether they were lisled on the
Stock Exchange with inactive transacrions or not lisled. by determining the fair value through one of the accepted
lechnical merhods for delermining the fair value. Howeve!, in case ofnot being able lo determine the [air value ofsuch
stocks through a reliable method, they should be measured at replacement cost.

At the date ofeach financial position. lhe value oflhe debl instrumcnls ECLS are eslimated by the bank and recognizcd
in lhe stalement ofprofis and losses. whereas the rest of differences like lhe change in the fair value are recognized in
the olher comprehenslve income. ln case the value rises, it should be expressed in the staremenl o[profits and losses ro
lhe extent of whal was previously charged during previous financial periods. provided that any increase should be
recognized in value in the other comprehensire inconre. As per the equity instru ents, all change dlfFerences are
recogntzed at fairvalue in the other comprehensive income till the asser is disposed, and in such case, all rhose dift'erences
arc carried to lhe retained eamings-

M. Goodwill
Goodwill (Positive. Negarive) representing in the amounrs resulted from the acquisirion ofsubsidiaries
companies and has been calculated based on the difference between the cost ofacquisition and the fair value
ofthe nel assets ofthe acquiree at rhe acquisition dare.
Tlre positive goodwrll is recognized at cost minus any losses resulted from the impairment ln the value of
goodwill while the negative goodwill is recognrzed directly in profit and loss.

N. Evalualiorl oI Housinq Proiect!
The cosl of *orks under constructions includes the cost of allocated lands for housing projecls, the cosl of the
conslruclions therein- the borrowing costs that are capilalized during the bormwing period unlil related work is finished
and all related expenses as u,orks under conslruclions are considered one ol lhe qualified assets to be charged wrth the

borrowing costs which should be no more capilalized for the projefis rhal its core aciivities needed to make rt ready for
ils identified purposes or for selling it to other.

Finished housing units are evaluated at lower ofthe cost or fair value: the farr value is evaluated in the lighl ofdetailed
studies. In case lhe fair value ls less than the cost, the dillerence is charged to reduce "profits ol houslng projecls '
item in the income statement. ln case of an increase in the fair value, such increase shall be credited to rhe income
slalement to lhe extent previously charged to the income stalemenl
The cosr and sclling price ofhousing unils in some distinguished projects are calculated according to the privilcges
in location and area for each unit with no effect on the project's total cost.

O, Inrcslmcnls propertr
lnvestm€nts property is represented in land & Buildings owned by rhe bank for gain rental revenues or capital
apprecia(ron. Therefore it doesn'r include real-estate assets used in th€ bank's operations or which was received in
settlement of the bank's liability. Inveslment is accouhred by lhe same method applied for fixed assels in rvhich

investments property are recorded at historical cost and deprecialed using straight line method using appropriale
deprecialion rate and recognizing impairment loss ifneeded

l5
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P. lntansiblr Asscts
P.l, Computcr programs
Expenses related to improvement & maintenance ofcomputer programs are recoguized as expenses in income statement
when incurred Recoenized as an intangible asset expenses related directly wirh definite proerams and under the bank
control & expected to genemte economic benefits whrch exceed its cost lor more than one year Direct expenses includes
Iabor cost in the program improvement team in addition to appropriate average of related general expenses and it rs

recognized as an improvemenl cost in the expenses that leads to an increased expansion or perfonnance ofthe compuler
program more than its original standards, it is added to the progmm cost.

Computer programs' cost which are recognized as an asset are amortized over its life time ofnot more than 4 years

P.2. Other intangible assets
Represented in the intangible assets other than goodwill and cornputer prograrns for example (trademarks, license, and

rental contracts benefi ts).

O. Fixed Assets
Land and buildings comprise mainly branches and offices. All fixed assets are carried at historical cost net ofaccumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cosl includes expenditures that are drrectly anrrbutablc to the acquisition
ofthe items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized separately. as appropriate. only when it is

probable that flture economic benefits associated with lhe item \vill flow 10 the Bank and the cosl of the rtenr can be

measured reliably All orher repairs and maintenance expenses are recognized in profrt or loss within other operaling
expenses durrng thc financial year in which they are incurred.

Depreciarion ls charged so as rc fiire offthe cost ofassets, other than land which is not depreciated, over their estimaled
useful Lives. using lhe straightJlne melhod to the extent oftheir estimated residual values based on the follo!r,in8 annual
rales:

Re-establishing expenses related to the rented bmnches are amo(ized through the estimated production life or the

year ofthe renl contracs whichever less

Facilities and installments are depreciated over 3 year's year.
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed. and adjusted if appropriate. at each balance sheet date

Assets thal are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumslances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amounl if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable atl'lount. The

recovemble amount is the higher ofthe asset's fair value less cosE to sell and value in use. The recoverable amount

ofan asset is the higher ofthe asset's net realizable value or value in use GaiDs and losses on drsposals are deterntined

by comparing proceeds with relevant canying amount. These are included in profit or loss in other operating income
(expenses) in the income statement.

R. \on-Financial Asset lmDrirment
Assets wtthout definrte useful life are not amo(ized & they are bein8 tested annually for rmpairment. Assets are tested

for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicated that the book value may not be recoverable

Then the impairment loss is recognized & and the carrying amount ofan asset is reduced to the extent that such carrying

amount exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount represents the higher of the asset's net selling value or
value in use ln order to estimate the impalrment, asset isjoined to smallest possible cash generahng unit

Non-hnancial assets with impairment are being reviewed to assess whether or not. all or pan olsuch impairment loss

should be reversed lhrough profit and loss.

S. Rental
Payments are recorded in operating rent account after deductrng any discounts received from the lesser in the expenses

rn the income statement accordinS lo straight line method within the contract year.
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Other intangible assets are recorded by acquisition cost and is amortized by straight line method or lhe economic bencfits
expected. along ils estimated useful life Considering assets \vith no definite useful life. they are nor amonized bul irs
inrpairment loss is yearly examined and recorded (if found) in the ilrcome statemenl
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T. Cash and Cash Equi\ahnls
For the purposes ofthe cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months'
marurity from the date of acquisrrron; they include cash and balances due from cenfial bank of Eg)?l-other than those
within the mandatory reserve, cufient accounts with banks and financial assets other than fair value through profit and
Ioss.

U. Prorisions
Provisions for restrucruring costs and legal claims are recognized when lhe Bank has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result ofpast events. il is more likely than nol that an outflow of resources will be required lo serlle lhe

obligation and the amount has been reliably esrimated

Where there are a number ofsimilar obligations, the likelihood that an oulflow will be requlred in setllcment is detemlned
by considenng the class ofobligations as a whole.

A provision is recognized even ifthe Lkelihood ofan outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations ls remo[e When a provision is wholly or panially no longer required, lt shall b€ reversed through profit and

loss under other opeiating income (expense). An appropriate interest rate is used to measure the present value of
liabilities payments lhat are delermrned to be settled after one year fiom balance sheet date. This interest rate is rot
affected by the taxes' rates which reflect rhe cash time value and if it's due in less than a year estimated value oF the
liabiliry is calculated and if it has an inrponant effect. it's recognized by the present value.

V. Financial collateral contracts
Financial collateral contract rs rhe contract issued by the bank to collateral loans or debit current accounls presented to

ils customers from other panies and it is required ftom the bank to pay cenain payments to compensate the beneficianes
of carried loss bccause debit payment in the due date according to the debt instrument s conditions These financial
collaterals are presented to banks, financial institutlons and other pades on behalfoflhe bank s custolners.

Initial recognition in $e financial statements is recorded by the fair value at the date ofgranling the collateral which

may reflecr the collateral fees. Later on, the bank's liabrlity is measured by the vinue ofthe collateral on lhe basis of
the initial recognition amount less the amortization to recognize the collateral fees in the income statement by the

straight line merhod over the collateral lifetime. or the best estinMllon ofthe needed payments to adjust any linancial
liability resulled [rom the financial collaterals on the balance sheet date which is higher. These estimations are

specified according to the expenence in similar transactions and historical losses and also by the management's
judgmcnt Any iDcrease in the IiabiliLles resulted frorn financial collaterals, rs recognrzed in lhe inconre statenrent as

orher operatlnB revenues (expenses)

\1'. Emplovees Benel'its
U,l. Pension Liabilities
The bank is committed to pay the contributions to the Social Insurance Public Authority. with no other liabililies after
pafng these contributions Those contnbutioN are recorded yearly in the income statement in its maturiry year and are

listed as labor benefits

The bank has insurance fund for the employees ofthe bank. which was founded in 1987 Working according to law no.

54 for year 1975 and its execudve regulations, in the purpose ofgranting compensatlon aDd insurance benefits for the

members. this pensron fund and its amendments are implemented on all of the enrployees of the bank's head office and

its branches.

The bank is committed to pay the annual and monthly subscription to the fund according to the funds regulation and its

amendments No other liabilities on the baok after the payment ofthe subscription Those subscriptions are recognized

as administmtive expenses when they come due. The prepaid subscnptions are recognzed as assels lo the limit thal the

deposit leads to reduce tie future payments or to a refirnd.

U.2, Retirement Lirbilities
The bank has applies a defined medical system for its employees and the retired ones. According to lhe above mentioned

syslern, rhe bank's liabilities are represenled in the difference between both the present value ofliabilities in the balance

sheet date and the fair value of its assets including settlemenrs resulted fiom acruarial prolit/loss and also the cost of
previous service. Those liabililies are determined annually by independent actuarial expert using the 'esllmated added

unir apprcach" and are determined rhrough eshmated furure out cash flow applying interest rates on bondswith malurities

similar to rhat ofthe Iiabrlitres in "other liabilrties" item.
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Acruarial profit/loss rcsulted from sefllements together wirh arnendrnents in the medical systcm are charged to the income
slatement

Ihe cost of the previously recognized service is charged directly to the income sraremenr as (general & administratrve
expense) unless chanBes that have been made o,l the policies state that worker should stay for a specified year, in ftis
case the cost ofthe sewice is amonized using straighrline merhod

Income tax is recognrzed based on net taxable profit using the tax rates applicable al lhe date ol lhe budgcl in addition to
tax adjustments for prcvious years

Deferred laxes is recognized on temporary differences belween the carrying amounts of assets and liabililies ir the
financial shtenlenls and lhe conesponding tax bases used rn the cornputation oftaxable profit.
Deferred tax assets and habilides are measured al lhe tax rates that are expected to apply in lhe year in which the liabilrty
is senled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacled or substantively enacted by the
end of lhe reponing year. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible remporary differences lo rhe
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible remporary differences can
be utilized. The carrying amount ofdeferred tax assets is reviewed al the €nd ofeach reponing year and reduced to the
extent lhar rt is no longer probable thal sumcient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered However! when it is expected lhat the tax benefil will increase. the carrying amounl ofdefefied tax assets shall
increase 1o the extent ofprevious reduction

\'. Borro$ ine
Loans oblained by lhe bank are inrtially recognized at fair value net of transaction cosls incurrcd in connection uith
obtaihing the loan. Borowings are subsequenrly measured at amonized cost, wrth Ihe drlferencc bctu,een net procecds

and the value lo be paid over the borrowing year, recognized in profil or loss usiDg the eflbclive inleresl rate melhod.

Z Capital
Zl. Cost of crpitrl
The issuance expenses that ale related directly u/ith issuing new sharss or shares ofacquiring entity or issuaoce options,
are presented irs a deduction from shareholdeE' equity and the net revenues after tar.

i4.2. Di\ idrnds
Dividends are recognrzed \,!hen the generalassernbly ofshareholders approves thcm Di\idends incl de the employecs'
profil share and the board ofdirectors' remuneration as prescribed by the bank's anicles ofassociation and the corporatc

AA. Trust Activitiet
Trust actrvities are the assets' opposition and rnanaging for lndividuals and fiInds lts !alues and profits are not recognized
rn the bank's financial slalements because they are not owred by the bank.

,\B. Comparadvc Figurct
Comparative figures are reclassified, where necessary, to conform with chadges in the curent year_s preseltation

Management of Financial Risks

Tlte bank. as a resuk ofconductrng its activities, is exposed to various financial risks Since financial activities are based on

rhe concept of accepting risks and analysing and managing individual risks or qroup o[ risks tog,elher. lhe bank aims al

achieving a well-balanced nsks and rclevanl rewards. as appropriate and to reduce the probablc adrcrse etlects on the bank s

finanoal pcrfonnance The most imponant r)?es oIrisks are credit risk. market risk. Iiquidity risk and other operatine risks

The marker risk comprises foreign currency risk. interest rate risk and other pricinB risks.

The risk managemenl policies have b€en laid down lo determine and analyses the risks. set limits lo the risks and conlrol
rhem tkoughreliable methods and uF{o-iate systerns. The bank regularly reviews the risk managemenl policies atrd systems

and amendments thereto, so that they reflecl the changes in markets. products and servrces and the best up-lo iale
apphcations.
fusks are managed in accordaoce with preapproved polici€s by the board of direclors. The risk managernent department

identifies. evaluates and covers financial risks, in close collaboralion with the bank's various operating units. The board

l8
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)L lrcoEe Tues
Income lax expense on the year's profit or loss includes the sum of the rax curently palable and deferred tax and is

recognized in lhe income statemenl, except when they relate to ilems that are recognized directly in equity, in which case

the tax is also recognized in equity.
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ofdirectors provtdes wrilten tules which cover cenain risk areas, such as credit risk, foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk and lhe use ofdcrrvative and non-derivative financial inslruments. Moreover, the risk department is responsible for
the year review ofrisk managemem and the control environment independendy.

A, Credit Risk
The bank is cxposed to thecredit risk which is the risk resulting fiom t'arlureoFlhe clienr lo meel its contracrual obligarions
louards the Bank. The credil risk is considered to be fie most significant risk for the bank. thcrefore requiring careful
management The credtt risk manifests itselfin the lending aclivities and debl instrunrcnrs rn bank's assets as w.cll as oll'
balance sheet financial insttuments. such as loans comfttments The credit risk managemenr and control are centralized
in a credit risk managcmenl team in Bank Risk nBnagemenl department and reported to the Board of Directors and head
ofeach business unit regularly.

A,l, Mersurins the Crcdit Risk
Losrs and frcilitiet to brnks and clients
In measuring credit nsk ofloan and advances to customers and to banks at a counterpany level, lhe Bank's rating system
is based on three key pillars:

. The'probability ofdefault' by the client or counlerpany on its contractual obligattons.

. Currenl exposures to the counterparry and ils likely future development, fio which lhe bank derive the (exposure al
defaulr)

The bank assesses the probability ofdefauh ofindividual counterpanies using inlemal raling lools lailored ro the various
care8ories of counterparty. They have been developed inlemally and combine statistical analysis with credlt olficer
judFnenl !o reach the rel€vant credit rating basis Clrents ofthe Bank are segnrented into four rating classes The bank's
rating scale. which is shou,n below. reflects the range ofdefault probabilities defined for each rating class This means
that. in pnnciple. exposures mitrate between classes as lhe assessnrent oftheir probabilily ofdefault changes. The raring
tools are kept under review and upgraded as necessary. The Bank regularly \alidales lhe pcrfomlance ofthe rating and
their predicnve power with regard to default even6.

B{nk's ioternrl ratipqs scrlc
Bank's Rrtins Descriotion of th€ Errde

I Cood debts
2 Normal watch-list
I Special watch-lisr
4 Non-perfomring loans

The posrtio! exposed to default depends on the amounrs lhat the Bank expects to be oulstanding when delay occurs For
instance, for the loans. the positron rvould be the nominal value: for commitments. the Bank includes all the amounts
already withdrawn rn additron to the othcr amounts that are expected to be withdrawn till the date ofdelay. ifany.
Presumptive Ioss represents the Bank's expecbrions ofthe amount of loss when the debt is claimed in case ofdelay
This is expressed by the loss percentage in the deb(, which cenainly differs according ro the type ofdeblor. lhe pnority
ofclairD, and the availability ofguarantees or olher credil coverage mea[s.

Dcbl Instrumcnls
As per debt instruments, the bank uses extemal classilications or any equivalent in credlt flsks' managemenl. Ho$ever,
ifsuch evaluations are not available, similar methods are used to rhe ones applied to credit clients Such investments rn

securities are considered a llleans !o obtain a better credit quality and a( the same time it provides an available source

for meeting the financing requirements.

A.2. Risk lirnit control rnd mitisrtion policies
The banl rnanages, limils and controls concentrarions of credil risk wherever rhey are rdentified - in panicular. lo
individual counterpanies and banks. and to indusrries and countries

The Bank smrctures the levels ofcredit risk il undenakes by placing limits on the amounr ofrisk accepted in relation to
one borrower. or groups oftorowers. and to geogaphical and industry segments. Such risks are monilored on a revolving
basis and subject lo an annual or more frequent review. when considered uecessary. Limits on the level ofcredrt risk by
individual, counterparties. produo. and industry sector and by country are approved quanerly by the Board ofDirectors.
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These credrt risk measurements, which reflecr expecled loss .The operational measurcmenrs can be contrasted wilh
impairmenl allowances required under EAS and in accordance wilh the Central Bank of Eg)?t's instructions approred
by the board ofdirectors on 16 December 2008, whrch are based on losses that have been incurred al the balance sheet
data (the'incurled loss model') rather than expected losses.
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The exposure to any one borrower including banks and brokers is funher restricted by subJimirs covering on- and off-
balance shee( exposures. and daily delivery risk limits in relation to trading items such as forward forei8n exchange
conlracts. Actual exposues againsl Iimits arc monitored quanerly.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed thrcugh regular analysis ofthe ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to
meer interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where appropriale.
Some other specific control and mitigation mersures are outlined below:
Collrterals
The bank employs a range ofpolicies and practices lo mirigare credil risk. The most rraditional ofthese is the taking of
security for funds advances, which is comnron practrce. The bank inlplenlents g!idelines on lhe acceptability ofspeclllc
classes ofcollareral or credit risk mitigation The principal collaleral lypes for loans and advances arei

. Mongages over resldential properties.

. Mongage business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable

. Mo(gage financial instruments such as debl securilies and equilrcs.

. Longer-lerm finance and lending lo corporare entities are generally secured; revolving individual credrt faciliries are
generally unsecured.
ln addilion. in order to minimize the credrt loss the bank will seek additional collateral fiom the counrerpany as soon
as impairment indicatoE are noticed for the relevanl individual loatls and advances.

. Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances rs determined by the nature ofthe
inslrumenl. Debl securities. treasury and other govemmental securities are generally unsecured. with the exccption of
asset-backed securities and similar instruments. which are secured by ponfolios offinancral insrruments.

DerivatiYes
The bank maintains snicr control limits on net open derivative positions (i.e., the difference bet*een purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time. lhe amount subjecl to credit risk is limited to the cunenl fair value
ofinstruments that are favorable to the bank (i.e., assets where their fair value is positive), which in relation to derivatrves
is only a small ftaction ofthe contiact, or negotiable values used to express the volume ofinstruments outslanding. This
credit risk exposure is madaged as pad of lhe overall lending linrits with customers, logether with potential exposures
from market movements. Collateral or other security is not u$rally obtained for credil riskexposures on these instruments.
except where the bank requires margin deposits from counterpanies.

Settlement risk arises in any sinration where a payment in cash, securilies or equities is made in rhe expectalion ol a

cofiesponding receipl rn cash, securilies or equities Daily setllenlent lin:its are established for each counlerpafly lo co\cr
lhe aggregate ofall settlenrent risk arising liom the Bank markel transaclions on any single day

CoInmilments Related to Credit
The pnmary purpose ofthese instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. Collatcrals and

standby lefler of credit carry lhe same credit risk as loans- Documentary and commercial leners of credit - which arc
writren undenakings by the Bank on behalfofa customer authorizing a third pany to draw drafts on the Bank up to a

stipulared amount under specific terms and conditions - are collateralized by the underlying shlpments ofgoods lo which
lhey relate and therefore carry less risk than a drrect loan.

Commitments to er(tend credit represent unused ponions ofauthorizations to extend credit in the form of loans. collalerals
or letleB ofcredir. ltr/rth respecl to credit risk on commilments lo extend credil. the Bank is polentially exposed to loss in

an amount equal to the total unused commitmenls. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the tolal unused

commitments, as most commitments ro extend credit are contingenl upon customers maintaining specific credit slandards.

The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit cornmilments because longer-temr commitmenb gcnerallv have a

greater degree ofcredit nsk than shorler{erm commirments.

,1.3. ImDairment a Pro\irinn{ Policies
Policies The inremal raring sysrems prevrously described focus more on credit-quality mapprng ftom the inception ofthe
lending and investment activities. ln contmst, impairment provisions are recogflized for financial repo(lng purposes only
lbr losses that have been incurred at rhe balance sheet date based on objective evidence of inpaimlent due to the difTerenl

merhodologies applied, the amount of incurred credit losses provided for in the financial statements are usually lower
than the amount determined from the expecled loss model lhal is used for intemal operational management and Central
Bank of Egypt s regulation purposes.

The impairment provision sho\,m rn the balance sheet al the period is denved frorn each ofthe lhree intemal rating Bradcs
However. the majority ofthe impairment provision comes from the bottom lwo grads
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The table b€low shows the petcentage of the bank's in balance sheet items rclalrng to loans and advances and thc
associated impairmenl provision for each ofthe bank's intemal rating categories.

10,9i 20 2-1

Bank's Rating lmpxirment losses
provision 70

l6yo
t5%
69yo

to00/. 100,%

Loans and facilities includes loans used limit and percentage of loans agreemenrs, according to the volume ofexpecred
used lrmit in addition to financial collarcial contracE.

The bank's policy requires the review ofall financial assets that are above matenalrty thresholds ar Ieast annually or nmre
re8ularly when indivrdual citcunlslances require. Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are
determined by an evaluation of $e incuned loss at balance-sheer date on a case-by-case basrs. and are applied ro all
indlvidually significanl accounts- The assesstuenl normally encompasses collateral held ( including re-confirmation of its
enforceabrlity) and the an(icrpared receipls for thar individual account

lmpairment loss provision is formed based on homogenous assets using the historical experience of kran Ioses. available
personal judgDent ofbank management and statistical methods

&l-Bqnk fusks Meesurement Generel Model
In addition to the four categories of measuring credit worthiness the management makes sub-groups more detailed
according to the Ccntral Bank of Egypt's rules Asscts facing credit risk arc classified to delailed condilions rclvilg
greatly on customer's inlbrmation. aclivities, financial posrtion and his rcgular payments ro his debrs.

The bank calculates the provisions needed for impainnent ofassets exposed to credit risk including conrrnitments rclated
to the credit based on specral percentages determined by CeDtral Bank of Eg1pr. ln rhe case of increase of impairment
loss provrsron needed according to credrt wonhlness as per Cenlral Bank of Egypt over the inlpainnent loss for the
purpose ofpreparing lhe financial stalement according lo the Central Bank of Eg}?t approved by rhe Board ofDirectors
as on December 16,2008, regarding lhe implemenratioh ofIFRS 9, the generalbanking risk reseFe is included in owners'
equity deducted from the retained eaming wrth this increase, this reserve is modrfied on a regular basis wrth the rncrease
and decrease, which equals the increase in provisions and this resene is not distribuled.

And this are categories of institlrtional worthlness according to inlemal ra(ings compared wilh Cenlral Bank ofEgypt's
ratings and rates ofprovisions needed for asseLs impairment related to credtt riski

Chssification of
the Cetrtrsl Bank

of Esvpt
I

3
4
5

6
'7

8

9

t0

Srage I

Stage 2
Stage l

Chssiliceliotr Sipnlric.nce

Low risks
Average Risk

Salisfacto.y risks
Reasooable fusk s

Acceptable Risk
Marginally Acceptable risk

Warch lisr

Substandard

Doubrful
Bad Debr

Loors and
fscilities 70

90y.
lo/.

I

I

I
I
I
2

3

4

I
4

Reouircd
provision

!!!s
Zero
to/"
lo/o

20/o

3%

200/0

50%
1000/0

Internal
classilicalion

lntcrnal classification
Sieni[icance

Perlbrming Ioans
Performing loans
Performing loans
Performing loads
Performing loans

Regular watching
Watch lisr

Non-performing loans

Non-performing loans

Non-performing loans
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A.5. Marimum Iimits Ibr Credit Risk before Collateral.

Iterns Exposed to Credit Risks
Due frorn t anks
I-oans and facilities to crtstorners
ftetail I-oans
Owerdrafts
Credit cards
Personal Loans
Real Estate Loans
Corporate I-,oans:
Overdialls
Direct Loans
Syndicated Loans
S I,ecialized l-.oans:
Direct Loans
Financial Assets:
Debt Instrurnents
lOther assets
Total

E(; P IJ(; P

26,53.),656,419 t9,O5 | ,263,t 23

30/09/2023 11/1)/20)7

r ,1 36,632,0 r 6

tta,76t,146
1o,575,339,2{J2
12.271 ,93O,3O'7

965,239,239
95,767 ,266

9,O77,102,4a1
I t,o55,697,419

5,943,431,959
9.444.346_O'7',|
2,552,848,871

7,492,2tO,793
6,122,515,4r I

2,1 10,665_484

217.292,539 2'78,472,303

7'7,'793,723,394 67,5 I O,956,O l5

12,231,O22.1t1 37.597,67ro,396

Neither past dues nor subject to irnpairrnena

Past due but not subject to irnpairrnent
lndiwidually subjecr to irnp airrnent
Totsl

3(]/09/2023
E(;P

lrans & adrarnccs to
cu s toinc r's

37.'tOI.352.76t

|,459,769,67(]
3,O69,899,6E6

!!2ew
EG.E

Loans & adwances
to custorncrs

32,9r2,t t-7.6t I

1,945,9 t 4,457
2,699,634,328

3,a99,576,60-3
5,732,464,255

6,224,t99,O99
4,637,a23,39-7

l ,ess:
IrYrp airrnent loss provision
Interest in suspense

(3,63a,733,174)
(ro,l60,l3ll)

(2,e3 7,845,O38)
( I O, t 6(), I38)

3A,sa2,12a,aOl 34.649.665.22()

A,6. Loans and Frcilities
Following is the position of loans aod facilities balances to the clients in terms of credit soh cncv:

Loans and facilities impairment reached EGP 769,912,307 compared to EOP 348,628,394 in the comparative period
ttem No- (l t) lncludes additional infomation about provision for impaiment losses on Loans and facrlitles to banks
and customeE.
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S tage I

l2ltonths

l0/09D021

Stege 2 Utetime S tage 3 tj te time Total

Rerail

Corporata

Retail

Corporate

12.06t .949.624

ri,619.401,I]?

755.700.615

i04,069,0t5

1.225.0t2.412

I,E44.EE7,17,1

24 .042.662.61 I

lE,t8E.-r59,4.16

17,70r.152,761 1.159.769.670 3.069.t99.686 .12-21t.022.1ll

Stagc 1

l: Uonths

30t09n023

S trge 2 Ulelime S lage -l tj felime Tolal

6r.689. t81

560,689,807

I82.5 t6.960

165.1 t.].224

621.t54.706

I,845.569.:9t

E67.160 t49

2,17 I .312j19

J.6JE.?]J,I7E

Stage I

l2 )lonths

7ltu2t22

S tage 2lifetime Total

Retail

Corporale

Retail

Corporale

12,9t2,117,6r l 1,9E5,91t,45? 2,699,634J28 17.597.670.t96

3vt2t2022

Stase I" Slrgr 2 Ufetime Slrge I lifelime
l2llonths

Iotal

19,537,159,t31

11,174,757,780

7l6.lll,0l0

I .269,595.427

940,I]]._{44

1,759,5 r0,784

I I,191.806,405

16,401.861,99t

54.812.030

581.858,786

t27.671,597

407.870, t9r

r61.887.6i7

| ,602.722,157

t45.t91,104

2.592,45t.114

636.690.&6

ti

535.541,7tt 1.76s.6r0,434 2.937.t15,01t

Slage -1 Ufetime



Housing And Development Bank
t\-otes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
For Thc \ine ]lonths Ended 30 September2023

!0n9n02!

Dur from batrks Slrqe I- Sirge 2 tjf(line Slege 3 tjfetime
Credil rrtine 12 Months

Totrl

26.510.656.419Oood debts

Nonnal warch-list

Special watch-lisl

Noo-p erforming loan

Total

AllorEnce for impairmert losses

Totf,l

Financial rlseh et amortizcd cosl

Crrdit ratitrp

Good debts

Nornal watch-list

Special watch-list

Non-p erforming loaa

Total

Allonslrce for imprirment losses

Total

Rctail Lans & Facilities

Crcdit ratinq

26 510,656.419

26.S30.656.119 26.530,656,.1l9

(631,9?0)

26.5t0.024,4J9 26.530.021.{49

30t0912023

S tage I

l2 \Ionths

I otal

1.899.576.603r.899.576.601

3,699,576,603 .3.t99.s?6.603

(187.r01) (r t7.r 0l )

-1.E99.tt9.502 t.899.t89.s{r2

30/09i 2023

Stage I

l2 Months

22.061 ,949 ,624

Stage 2 titetimc Stage I tifctimc Total

755.700.635

t.225.01:,412

755.700.515 1.225.012..1l2 2.1.0.12.661.61 I

Good dcbts

Normal\\ar.[-lisl

Non'peribmxl)g loan

Total

Allo\ance for impairmenl losses

Total

22.061 .949.624

755.700.615

r.125.0 r2,4 r2

2r,061,949.621

(61.689.18t) (182.516.960)

22.000,260,441 573.1E1.675

(621,t 51.706)

601,857,706

(t67.360.8{9)

23,175,30 r.t22

1A

(631,9?0)

Stagc 2 tifetime Stage 3 Ufetime
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Corporate toans & Frcilities

Credit ratins

Stage 2 tjfetime Stage l lifetimc

704,069,0t5

1.844,8E7.274

10i09l0ll

Stage I

I2llonths

15.619,403,137

Total

Good debts

Nonoal watch-list

Non-p erformmg loan

Total

AllowrDce for imFirme[t los!€s

Totel

Due from banks

Credit ratinq

Cood debts

NomEl watch-list

Sp.Eial watch-list

Non-p erforming loan

Totrl

AllowEnce for impaimetlt losses

Total

Financial essets al amortizedcost

Credit ratins

Good debts

Normal walch-list

Sp€cial walch.list

No[-performing loan

Total

Allotallce for imprirmeht losses

Totsl

1s,619.401.n7 704,069.015 1,81{.tE7.274

t5.6t9.40.t t37

i04.069,015

I ,844,881 .214

lE.ltE.l59..l46

(s60.689.807) (r6s,113,224) (1,81s.s69,29E) (2,771,312)29],

15.078.713.1t0 llt.955.EIl (6E2.024) 15.. 6.9E7.117

Stagc I

l2 \lonrhs

3U12t2022

Stage 2 fifetime S tag! I I-ifctimc TlJtal

19.0i l.26l. r2i

19,051,263,t23 I9.05t.261. t2-1

(2.lE.o{.1)(2rt.0.13)

19,051,015,0t0

Stage I

l2 Months

6.124.199,099

31i1212022

19.05t.015.0t0

I olrl

6.:24.199.0q9

Stage 2 Ufctinle Stage 3 Ulerime

6.r21.199,099

(-r70.9t5)

6.224.199.099

(l?0,9E5)

6.221.828.1r1 6.221.828.1l.{

25

19,05 t,261,t23
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Retail l-oan! & Fecilities

Credit rstins

Stage I

l2 !lonths

3y12t2022

Strge 2 tjfelime S tage 3 Ljfcrimc l otal

Good debts

Nonnal \atch-lNl

N on-p erfonning loan

Total

Allorvance for impairment losses

Total

Comorarc Loans & Facilirics

Crrdil ratin!

Good debts

Nomral watchlist

Non-p erforminS loan

Total

Alloxu Ice for imp{irment lor3es

Totrl

Land

Housing units

Hotel

t9.5l7,l59,Ell 19,517.159,81r

7r6.12t.0t0

940.121.544

716.12.1.0.10

940.12t,544

716,32t.010 940,123,51,1 21.193.E06.105

(54.t32,030) (127,613,s91) (162,117.677) (31s.391.301)

r9,.tt2,527,801 5EE,619.433 777,235,t67 20.E4E.411.101

r9,517,359,81t

Strge I

l2 \lonths

1U12t2022

Stage 2lifetime Stage J tj fetine '1otal

l].174,757.780 ti,tl4 ,151 ,180

r,269.595.127

r.759.510.784

r,269.595.127

I :59.it0.t31

1.269.595.127 t.759.510.7t4 16.{01.t6t.99r

(107.870.19r) (r.602.722.?57) (2.592.{5l.7ll)

861.725,2t6 156.7tt.027 ll.& 1.,r r 2,257

r3.-171.757.7t0

(5&.85t.7t6)

12,792,t9t,991

A,7, Acquisition of collaterals:
Assets o\rned through possession are classified among other assets in the balance sheet

Those assets are sold whenever pmctical accordrng to The Central Bank ofEgypt regularions ro dispose those assets in a

specified period.

Book Value

3U09n0?J 3yt2/2022

EGP EGP

13,141,400 13.741,400

I 371,001

49,t39,024 49,139,024

62,880,425 63,25t,425

26
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@itrisks:
Geogrephicrl segmetrts
The following table represents the analysls ofthe most important bank's credit risks measured at the book value. allocated
according to the geographical segrnent at l0 June 2021 While preparing this table, risks were allocated 10 the geographical
segments according to the areas related to the bank's customeN.

Creater Cairo

26.530.656.419

Arab Republic of Egfpt

Al€xandrix. Delta
upper tgypt

and srnar
Totrl

26.530.656.419

126,806, t 75

5E,236,t03

4 ,814,5 56,329

7 .361.652.668

682,046.940

50,746,748

3 ,Ea6,945 ,629

3 ,41 1 ,843 ,24 5

121,718,90t

9,778,295

t ,813 ,811 ,244

t,432A34,394

1,136,632.0 r 6

I18,761.146

to,5'7 5,339 .202

r2.211.930.307

3.1E6,412,1r9

E.449 .432,086

2,459.310,546

2,255,81,r.887

907,686.822

501.584.951

t7,267.169

9.1,518.325

5,943.83 t,959

9 .444 .386.0'71

2,552.848.871

216,312,884 959.655

3,899,576,603

5.010.298.791

1.E99.576,601

5.112.46E.25569.557.134 52.6 r 2.l3 0

62.349.310,123 1t.265,601.060 4,r78.tr l,6l l 11.193.123,394

s2,947,159,93t t0,792.'790,46s 3,771,005.6t9 67.5t0.956.0rs

2'7

Due from banks

[-orns and Ad]ance to Customers

Retril l-oans:

Overdrafts loans

Credit cards loans

Personalloans

Real Estate loans

Corporate I-oatrs:

Over&afts

Direct loans

Syndication loans

Speci{lized Irans:

Other loans

Financial Assets

Debt Insttuments

Other Assets

Total as of 30/092023

'fot^l 
^s 

ol 3lll2D022
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For Thc \ine llonths Endcd l0 Scplcmbcr 2023

B. M{rket Risk
The bank takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk rat the fair value or future cash flows of a fiDancial
mstrument \vill fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise fiom open poslhons in inretest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to geneml and specific market movemenls and changes in the
level ofvolatrlity olmarket rates or prices, such as interesl rates, currency risk and equiry instrunrents The bank separates
its level ofexposure to market risk to rrading portfohos and non-trading
Market risk nranagement arising frorn tradrng or non-tmding activities concentrated ln managing the risk in the bank and
it is follorved up thror.rgh two separated teams, and regular repo(s delivered to rhe board ofdirecrors and rhe heads o,'the
activrty units regularly.
The trading porlfolios iuclude the positions resulted from the bank s direct interaclion with custoulcrs or Nilh Inarket.
while non tbr rrading ponfolios, arises basically Aom the management ofthe interest rates ofassets and liabililies related
to retail transactions These ponfolios include foreign currencies nsk and equrtv lnstrumenls risk resulled fronl hcld ro
maturity investments and available for sale lnvestnlents

VAR is a statistically based estimate of the potential loss on the current ponfolio resulting liom adverse market
movements Il expresses the 'maximum' amount the bank might lose. but using cenain level ofconfidence (98%). There
is lherefore a specified statistical probability (2%) that actual loss could be Ereater than the VAR esrimate. fhe VAR
model assumes a certain 'holding year' until positions can be closed ( l0 days) before closing the opining quaners. and il
is assumed that the nloyement oIthe market during the relention year will lollow the sanre nrovemenl pattern thal occurred
during the pre!ious ten days

The bank is assessing the historical movements in the market prices based on volatilities and correlalions dala lbr the past

two years while collecting the historical data for the past five years and the bank applres these hrstorical changes in rates,
prices and indicators directly !o the cLrrrent positions, and this way is known as a sinrulated historical nrcthod alld the
actual oueuts are monitored on regular basis to measure the appropnate assumptions and factors used to measure VAR
The use ofthis approach does notprevenl losses outsideofthese limits in the event ofmore significant markel movenrents-

Stress testing
Stress Testing Stress tesls provide an rndicalion of the potential size oI losses that could arise under exlreme nurkcl
coDditions Therelbre. bank designs stress tests according to rts activrlies by using typical analysis to specilic scenanos-

29

B.l. Market Risk Measurement Techliggs!:
Value at risk
The bank applies a "value at risk" merhodology (VAR) ro its trading portfolios, to estimate the market risk of its positions
held and it's been monitoring daily
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8,2. Foreign exchrnee risk

The Bank rakes on exposure to the effects oflluctuations i[ the prevailing foreign cunency exchange rates on its financial posirion

and cash flows. The Board sets limits on the level of exposure by currency and in aggregate for both ovemrght and rntra-day
posltions, which are monirored daily. The table below surnmarizes the bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk and

bank's financial instruments at carrying amounls, catego zed by cunency.

Sterling

Pound
l0 Septembrr 2023

Fitr{rcisl lirbilities:

Due to bank

Customer's deposils

Ot her Financial liabrhies

Totrl fi nrrcirl liebilities

Nel finrncial positior rs of30 S eptember 2023

3l Decenber 2022

Total fmnclal6sets

Total fi nancial liabilities

Net financial p osit ion as of3l December 2022

526.778

I.r29.152

90.7 r8

61.896

E6,0i7

t,245

1t99.261

4,t75,286

4,187

r 1.890.015

99,874,211

t5,644,967

75,000,000

86.120,701

I0,829,E15

Other

Currencies
Eu ro

40.119.142

4.02r, 6

4.001.i99

ll1,3l8 L.1.i6l ,1.991

t60,127

3,187

5.715.361

143.455

3,176,241

t.655,357

l72.t50.slr 5.918.E22 r6.1,511

(.190.365) r6t.5.t! (7s5)

5.031.601

352.127

4.848.0i6 136..1-1?73,r 10.678 i.i4? t9l

16,467.499 5,028,116 117,673 4.0i8.?64

(t,t56,81r) (r80.280) (r.226) (191,i71)

30

LS Dollar

Finrncialtusets:

Cash and balances $ ith CL.lrIral BaDk

Due tiom balis

Loans & facililies to cuslomers

Financial inrrstmenls

FmanclalAssels at amodEed costs

Financral Asscts a1 lair value throu$ other comprehensive

tnc0me

Other Financialassets

Tolalfinancialrssets t63.759 5,383,7
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B.J.lnterest rate Risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the luture cash flows ofa financial instrunrent will fluctuate because ofchanges
in markel interest rares. Fairvalue interest rate nsk is lhe risk rhat the value ofa financial instrument r*,ill fluctuate because
ofchanges in market rnterest rates- The bank takes on exposure to the effecls offluctuations in the prerailing lcvels of
markel interest rales on bolh its lair value and cash flow risks Inlerest margins may lncrease as a rcsult ofsLlch changes
bul may profit decrease in the event that unexpected movernents adse. The board sets limits on the level oI mismatch of
iuterest rate reprising rhat rnay be underLaken, which is nlonitored daily by Risk Dept

The following table summarizes the risk that the bank faces the change in the rerum value includrng rhc book valuc of
financial instruments allocated based on the re-pricing dates or due dates price whichever is sooner:

(Values in Egyptian thousands pounds)

Lp to llore than

I nr on th to

-1 n|onths

llor€ than

-l months lo

Nlore than \\ irhou r

Tor.l

Finrncirl Aisets:

Crsh and DlE from Central Bank

Due from bnks

Loans & faciliries to cunomers

Fi nrncirl Assel!:

Fat value other lhan lhrougl
profit and loss

Fat val'.E through profir and loss

Other assets

Totrl fiBrtrcial !ssetr

firrnciil li.bilitirs
Due ro b6nks

Customer's drposirs

Oth€r loans

Other finarcial habilries

Totrl li n.nci al li.biliries

26,455,216

2_756,803

14,t24,739

45t,909

91 ,1 .430

1.t97165

5 !ears

I t.318.498 27. r 68.29 r

u.187.986

16,227.543

75.1E0

)6,22t,541

26.510,656

42 11t,022

175 6.r I

,r9.01-.

t.lE7.?J0

ts.9si.,] I

500.(lt 6

lt 9s6 7rr

13.7'18,771 1,214,195 22.1t6,184 30.7t0.709 :5.901.951 171.462,666

3,367,005

I2,9E.1,76E

4,241

4.781,981

24,566

27. l]6,r]6

I ,023.616

I9,470.1.1I

220,124

r2,155,0 r 5

t0

3t 042.62.7

3,t67.0t5

95,4 t6. r71

1,171,157

27,40.{,101

11,E46.0E0

( t,065.-17 t )

15.2.19.236

46.291.9t3

(20,389,e92)

t6,356.0J4

27,412,69-1

1.E08.547 28.160.062

(5-11,752) (5,.r43,47E)

l:7..r62.666

31
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C. LiouidiN Risk
LiqLridity risk is rhe risk rhat the Bank is unable to meet its pa),rnent obligations associated with its financial liabilities
wheD they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the failure to meet obliBations
to repay depositors and fulfill commrtments to lend-

Liquidit-v Risk Manag€ment
The bank's liquidity management process, as canied out within the bank and monitored by Risk Management
Deparlment, includes:
. Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met This includes

replenishmenl offunds as they mature or is trorrowed by customers. The bank maintains an aclive presence in global
money markets to enable this to happen.

. Maintaining a ponfolio ofhighly marketable assets thal can easily be liquidared as protection against any unforeseen

interruption to cash flow.
. Monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against intemal and requirements ofcenffal bank of Eg}?r.
. Managing the concentmtion and profile ofdebt malurities.

Monitoring and reponing take the form ofcash flow measurement and projections for the next day. week and month
respectively. as these are key years for liquidrty management- $e starting point for those projections is an analysis ofthe
conkacrual maturily ofthe financial habililles and the expected collection date ofrhe financial assets

Fuflding approach
Sources of hqurdity are regularly reviewed by a Consolidated team in the Risk Management (Assets & liabilities), to
marntain a wide diverslfication by cudency, provider, producl and term.

The available assets to cover all the liabilihes and the loan's obligations include cash. balances with Central bank. dues

fiom banks. rreasury bills, other govemmental secunues and loans and advances to customers and banks. customers'
Ioans that are due within a year are extended panially for the ordinary activity ofthe bank In addition, some oldebl
instruments. rreasury brlls and govemrnental securities are mortgaged ro guarantee the liabilities. the bank has the ability
to cover the net unexpectcd cash flous through tbe sale offinancral secunties and finding other funding resources

Due from brnks
The fair value of floaring rate placements and ovemight deposits is their carrying amount The esrimated fair value of
fixed rnterest bearing deposits is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money-markel inlerest rates for debls
wrth simrlar credit risk alld remaining matuflty.

Loans and Facilities to banks
Loans and banking faciliries represenred in loans nor from deposits at banks The expected fair value ofthe loans and

facililies represents the discounted value of future cash flows expected to be collecled Cash flows are discounted using
the current market mte to determine fair value-

Loans and Facilities to customers
Loans and advances are net ofprovisions for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents the

discounted amounr ofestimated future cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current
market rates to determine fair value,

Financial Assets
Investmenl securitles include only interesFbearing assets held at amonrzed cost; financial assels classified at fair value
through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value Fair value for assets held at amortzed cost is based on

market prices or broker/dealer price quotations. where this information is not avarlable. fair value is estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield characterisucs

Du€ to other banks and customels
The estimated fair value ofdeposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest-bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand
The esrinuted [air value oI fixed interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings not quoted in an active market is based

on discounted cash tlows using interest rates for new debts with sim ar remaining maturiry

32

Risk Management Department also monitors unmatched medium-term assets, the level and type of un-drawn lending
commitments, the usage ofoverdratt facilities and the impact ofcontingent habilities such as standby letters of credit and

guarantees
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D. Capitrl Msn.q€ment
The Bant's objectives when managing capital, which consrsts of another items in addilion ofowner's equity stated in
balance sheet are:

To comply with the legal requirements in Et)?t and the countries where the bank's branches exisr.
To safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as ongoinB conc€m so thal it can continue ro provide rerums for
Shareholders and staleholders and o$er pafiies rhal deal with he bank.
To maintain a strong capital base to suppon the developmem of its business.
Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by the Bank's managemenr, employrng
techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Commi[ee as implemented by the Cenlral bank OfEgypt,
for supervisory purposes.

The required informarion is filed with the Aurhority on a quarterly basis. Central Bank of Egypt requires the
following:
Holdrng the minimum level ofthe issued and paid up capital ofEGP 500 milhon
Maintaining a ratio oftotal regulalory capilal lo lhe risk weighted asset or above the aereed minirnurn of 107o.

The bank's branches are working under thc regularions oflhe banking scctor in Egypr

The nonrinalor oIcapital adequacy standard consists of two trers:

Tier One:
Tier one. consisting of paid-in capital (after deducting the book value of reasury shares). and retained eamings ard
reserves resulting from fie distribution of profits with the exception of balking risk reserve and deducting there f.om
previously recognized goodwill and any transfened loss.
Tier Two:
Qualirying subordinared loan capital. which consists ofrhe equivalenr ofthe risl allocarion according to the pnnciples of
credilissuedbytheCentralBankofEgyptfornolmorethanl.2JTooftotalassetsandliabilitiesseightedrvithrisk. loans
/ deposits suppon in excess ofthe schedule of five years (with consumplion ol 2070 ofrheir taluc in each year of lhc last
five years ofthe schedule) and 45% ofrhe rncrease between lhe fair value and book value for each ofthe financial assets

in Associatcs and subsidianes and 457o from Special Resen-e.

when calculating the lotal dominator of capital adequacy, it shall not exceed the capital cushions (Qualilying
subordrnated loar capital) for share capital and loans not to increase (deposits) suppon for halfofthe share capital.

Assets are risk weithted ranging from zero lo 1007. classified by the relation ofthe debror to all each asset to reflect the
credil risk associated with it, taking the cash collateral accounl. These are used for the treatnrent of off balance sheel

items after adjusrmetrts to rcflect the narure ofcontingency and the poteDtial loss ofthose amounts.

The bank had complied with all the local capital requirements durin8 the past two y€als

JJ
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Th€ tollowing table summarizes basic and syndicrted capital componellts and the capital adequacl ratio.

30t0912023

ECP

3t i2/2022

EGP

Capital adequac].' ratio according to Brsel II

Crpital

(Tier I crpit.l) h.sic capitrl

Paid-up capital

Reserves

Retained eamings

Totaldeduction from basic capital

Other comprehensive income

Total basic capital

Net itrcome for the Period/Year

Totrl Basic Capital snd Pedod esmings

(Tier 2 capitel) sytrdicated capital,

45% of Sp ecial Reserve

lmpainnent provisions for loans facilities and regular contingent

Total Syndicated Capital

Totrl cEpital

Risk-lreighted assets {nd contingent liatitities:

Total Credit Risk

Tolal Market Risk

Total Operational Risk

Total

Capital Adequacy retio (9/.)

5J 13,000,000

4,303,760,358

97,117,429

(582,151,16E)

(367,{2s,6rs)

8,760,401,404 7.826.097.8 tl
3.015.06t.915 2,3t9,054.u I

rr,775.470,339 10.145.151.924

5,313,000,000

2.903 ,982.1't I
13.325.929

(319.380,404)

(rr4,829.886)

4,205,2t5

557,?6t,441

4.205.235

510.-140.050

561.973.678 514,645.:85

12.337,{{.1,01? t0,6'79.791.209

44,621,115.428

245,829,149

4,?30,975,066

,12.,135,203,962

246,568,638

1,880,8 t 7,566

.19,59t,2t0,241 46.562.590.166

2-1.t7 22 94

According to The balances ofconsolidation statements which agrced with the instructions ofthe Central Bank ofEgypt
(CBE) issued in l8 December2012
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Housing And De|elopment Bank
\-otes To The Consolidated Financial Strtemenh
For The \ine llonths Endcd 30 Scplember 2021

E. Fin;rnciall€r'€rasc

Tier one capltal afler exclusions

Tolal on-balance sheel erlosures. deri\ alives conrracls and financral papers operations

Toral off balaDce sheet eposures

I olal egosurcs on-balance sheet and ofI-balance sheet

Financial lerrrage rstio'/o

3U09n023

EGP

3 U t2t2022

EGP

1r,775,470,319 t0,t45,t5t.924

ll0.lt28.{57.000 I0E.716.181.000

9.00 9l-'l

12E.457.133.000

2.171,124,000

t06,720,0t7.000

2.0r6.,16.r.000

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judements

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that aflect the reponed amounts ofassets and liabililres within the next financial
year. Estimates and Judgments are continually evaluated and based on histoncal experience alld other faclors. including
expeclations of future events rhat are believed to be reasonable under the circun$tances and available info

A, ImDairtuent Iosses on loans and lacilities
Based on personal basrs The Bank reviews its loan ponfohos to assess impairrnent at least on a quanerly basis in
determining whether an impain ent loss should be recorded in the income statement. the Bank makes judgments as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimared future cash flows
from a ponfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio .This evidence
may include obsen,able data indicaling that there has been an adverse change ln the payment (Egyptian Pounds) stahrs

of borrowers io a Bank. or national or local economic condltions that correlate with defaults on assets in lhe Bank
N4anagement uses estimates based on hisrorical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objecove
e\idence ofimpairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash 0o$s. The methodology and

assumptions used for estimating both the amount and hmrng of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reducc any

differences belween loss estimales and actual loss experience

B. Fair valu€ of dcrivatires
The faiI values offinancial instruments rhat are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation techniques-

Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used ro determrne fat values, they are validated and periodically
reviewed.

C. Financial assets classified as amortrzed cost
The non-derivative financtal assels with fixed or delerminable pa],ments and fixed maturity are being classified as

amorrized cosl. This classification requires significantjudgment. In makng thisjudgment. the Bank evaluates its intention
and abilrty to hold such rnvestmenrs Io maturiry Ifthe Bank fails to keep these investments to maruritv other than tbr lhe

specific circumstances- for example selling insignificant amount near 1o the maturity date

D. Income tares
The bank is subject to income tax in a number ofrax circles for ils branches whlch rcqulrcs lhe use ofsigrificant cstinrates

to determine the rotal income tax provision. There's a number oIoperatrons and accounts lhal are dil]icult lo delermine
its final tax expense accurately The bank created provisions for the expected results ofthe tax inspecrion that is being
conducted and to account for probable additional tax When there is a dlfference between the final results ofthe tax and

the pre-recorded amounrs, these differences wrll be adjusted against the income tax and the defefied income tax provision
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Housing And Development Bank
\otes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
For Thc Ninc Ilonths Ended 30 September 2023

A. SssEe4-4!4lEl!-s[-as$!jlis!
Segment activity includes opemtional procedures and the assets that are used in providing banking services and managing
the risk related to it and rhe rerum relevant to ihat activity that may drffer from any other activrtres and the segment
analysis ofoperations according to banking operations includes lhe following.

Corporate, rnedium &small sized enterprisc
This includes current accounts (debit/credn), deposits, loans & facilities and financial denvatives

InYestments
lncludes rnerging ofcompanies, financing companies restructuring & financial tools.

Retail
Includes current. saving & deposit accounts. credit cards, and personal & real estate loans

Other activities
Includes other banking activiries.

Transafiions between busitress segments are on normal commercial rerms and conditrons and it ncludes opeEtional
assets and liabilities as presented in the Banks's balance sheet

Rererroes ,rd ErDenses according to segmeol actiYitv

The Period ended on 30 Septeober 2023

Segmmt activity revenues

Segmenl activity epenses

Segment operation results

Unclassrfied epmses

Net income for the period before taxes

Taxes

Net income for the period

The Period ended on 30 Seprember 2022

Segment aclrvity revenues

Segment activ(y eryenses

Segment operation results

Unclassified e&enses

Net income for the period before taxes

Taxes

Net income for the period

ln\.rstmen t

2.413,998,587

'7 45 .3 t 7 .846

I ,668.680,741

lndi riduxls

1,770.751,029

1.815.691.036

Othcr acti\itics

1,46 t.942.268

1.t91.586.406

1.268.155,862

lnlrstm€nl

2,019,886,222

t43,21 1,511

I,176.6t4,705

Indiriduals

t.930,r t3,194

1.390,149,107

539.961,087

Oth€r rcti!ities

r.649.6 r 8,055

17 5,254.079

874.161.976

Corporate

5 .292,152,948

2.9 10 ,41 2,044

2.181,780,904

Corporate

2 ,1 | 6 ,599 ,601

r.925.087,167

791,512,214

EGP

Total

13,938,947,E32

6.6t5,069.312

7,253,87E,500

(9s4,r 86,003)

6,299,692.491

( r,549,852,857)

4,?49,839.630

EGP

Total

8,316.21r-.072

4.933.?62.070

3.182.1_i5.002

2.S2-t.5i1.167

(I25.:ll0l6l)

l.999.ttt 004
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Housing .4.nd DeYelopment Bank
).'oles To The Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Nine I\Ionths Ended 30 September 2023

B. Analvsis of Geoeraphical Seements

Period e Dd€d on l0 Srpt€mber 2021

R€\?r ues &erpensr3 in rccordrnce

$ ilh geographicrl i€gmenl

GoEaph ical scSmcnl rcrcnucs

Gographical segmen I e\pens€s

Scloisprofil results

Ner income lor lhe periodtefole laies

Taxes

\er lncome lor lhe p€rLod

Assets and lirbilities ir zccord,n(e $ilh geographicat stg eot

As.rs ol gcogaFhL. segDen(

tnspecficd asrel5

Totalrircts

Liabilir ies oi geoEaphic s€Enenr

Oth.r ilemi of the geogrrphicrl segn.nl

Depreciatrons

lmpairmenl Ios\

Period ended on l0 Sepl€mber 2022

R€wtrues &erpens€s in rccordrncr

$ith geographical i€gmenl

GoEaph ical segnent r€renuls

GoEaphrcal segment erpens€s

Scior s profil resulls

\er income lor rhe penod tEtore I ar\

\er incom. for rhe penod

Arsch atrd liabilitir! in accordr[ce with g€ographical segm€tr1

Ascrs oi gcogaphrc s.gncnr

UnspeDified ass.I s

Total asscts

LiabiUries ot grographic segment

Olhcr il€ns ofthe geogrrpii.rl segment

Deprecrarions

Impairmenl

99.?t7.071,564

85 208.489.801

r?,511,837.795

t7.169 t&.841

t pper t8r pi

) l:: \ll ! j j

0? 4ll 1.11t (rJ.580,043)

5.255,E1I,t1s

5 04t.716.6t1

1I.181.711.20r

1.129.051,?49

121.813.?72.951

r07.620.?9t.26r

Alerrrdrie.
Delta& SiEri

.{lerrndrir.
Deltr& S inri

ECP

Tolal

tl;P

Ior{l

(t96.778,r04)

(361.r11,6.11)

ll.879.934.671

6.285,648.484

5.594.2E6, t8?

1.196 177. r68

t.05.1.940.161

412,i17,005

56:.i35.991

199.666.6t8

261.069,t05

13,938,94?.812

7.639.255.-ll5

6,299.691.r97

6.299.692.!97

(t.5{9.t52,t6i)

r.?49.Et9,610

(155,219.2611

(7?2,912,356)

(rEr,2sl,6{7)

l?72.912,1s6)

Grerler C airo L pper &\ pr

( r8,016.r86) (E l l l,ll5 )

6.481.302.697

4,482 319 .998

2.000.922,699

r 281.998.776

77.t.t34.017

509.86.1.7t9

548,9r5.599

2t5,1?0.770

111.741829

8I r6lr7 0?l

s.19r681 805

r $r.532167

1.31,1.5 2 l6?

(815..1l0.l6l)

I 999I2 001

87.55J 870 317

71,075.169,494

r1,128 898.151

r4,2 t8,899 414

l.l9?.605,757

J,261.841,1l4

t05. t8l.l7r.4l?

r.2l].]09.400

t06,t99,581.827

94.558.210.242

(t70,4 t0,481)

06r,141.61I)

3'7

Grerler Criro



Housing And DcYclopmcnt Bank
Notes To'fhe Consolidated Financirl Statements
For The ,\--inc lUonths Endcd 30 Scplcmbcr 2023

6. NEI' I\TRES'T INCO}I I]

Lrterest receir'td frolD lor!! rod rimilrr itamsi

l,oans and advances to clrstomers

Financial investrnent (olh6 than thal at f.i value rhrouSh prolit ard loss)

Deposils and flrlcnt accounls

Irt.rcrt otr D.politt .Dd timll.r Erp.Drc!:

Deposits and cufiEnt accounts:

Banks

CuslorErs

Totrl

Other fmancial institulions loans

Totrl

Net itrterrit iE(!me

?. \et lirs & (onrmissionr incomc

{t.3s1.650

1.5t7 .061 ,227

7,2t5,t5:

3.523.859,657

The Nine M opths Ended

at l0 Seotember 2022

EGP

2,5l],662,036

,,251 ,447 .t23

1.281,641.%t

4.523,629,954

4,061,457,1fl

1,452,025,116

t 2,039,1n.l I I 7.052.751.t00

4,62E,420,877

ll7.692,247

l-5i6.074.809

|2,417.169

1.7{6.1Il.l2{

1 .292.999 ,9t1 I irr:6i) j:l

The :\..inc Molths Erded
at 30 September 2023

EGP

r05,006,31l

141,726,749

307,250,E90

The Nine M onths Ended
at 30 S€ptember 2022

EGP

Fces & commissions incorlrc :

Fees & conunissrons related to credil

F inancing fees

Other fees

Total

Feet and commission expens€s:

Other paid fees

Net income from fees and commlssions

68,313,366

151,487,524

181,139,173

553.983.990 402.940.063

(J2.656.2t2) (2s.s36.51 l )

sl1,327,708 3'77.103-552
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Housing And D€velopment Bank
:\otes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Nine luonths Ended 30 Seplcmbcr 2023

t. Dividends lncome

Financial assets al fat value lkough ptofit and Ioss

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehmsive inmme

Total

9. \et trading incomc

Gain from dealing in foreign currencies

Currencies Forward contracls valuation differences

Equity irstruments held at fair value through profit
and loss

10. Rerenue fronr housing proiec(s

608,462,65r

114,213,900

486,978,686

85,184,556

the \inc }lonths f,nded

at 30 Septcmb€r 2023

ECP

1,663,976

1,068,124

The r- ine M onths Ended

at 30 SeDtem ber 2022

LCP

2.087. t00

1.791,612

4,732,100 5.87t.712

The Nine Months Ended

ar 30 Seotember 2022

EGP

22.716.824

1,751.400

15.4 t8.675

The Nine Months Ended
at 30 S eptember 2021

EGP

1,1,516,315

55.348.460

69.861.?95 39.88t3,899

The Nine luonths Frrdcd
at 30 S eptembc r 2023

EGP

t ,223,944,725

6t 5,442,O7 4l

The Nine M onths Ended

at 30 September 2022

EGP

859,62E,837

(372,650,151)

922,676,551 s72,r63,242
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Housing And Dcr clopntcnt Bank
Iotes To Th€ Consolidated Financial Statements
l'or Thc Ninc I\Ionlhs Endcd .30 Srptcmber 2023

I l. .\dnliniitrrlirr c\pcnsts

Strffcost
Wages and salaries

Social insurances

RetLemenl benefit cost

Operation utilities

Current expenses

Porlion of social and athletic activities

Donations

Ot her

12. 9!-hc.r-sPsr3-!i!s-Is!.E.cs!

Revaluation losses ofassers and liabilities balances in
foreign currencies wirh monelary nature orher lhan
held at fair value through prolir and loss or classified

at inceplion ar fair value rhrough profit and loss

Cain frorn selling p ropen ies planrs & equipmcnl

lmpainnent ofother assets and projects

Others

l -1. Loans impairmcnl loss(s

Loan and customer advances

Due from banks

Debt instrummts at amortized cost

Debt instrumenls at fair value througlr other
comprehensive income

'l'hc \inc Months tldcd
.t 30 Septembcr 2023

EGP

753,505,96E

4E,243,9E2

13,256,759

662,514,744

245,262,250

ao7,42A

t5,294,149

37,887,906

The Nine Moriths Ended

at 30 SeDtember 2022

EGP

650,484,960

40,808,132

I I,384,722

449, t t4,160

272,6t6,225

t,926.aO4

24,OO2,849

78,898,640

1.816.t45.1E6 I,529.216_692

Thc Ninc Monlhs Ended
rt 30 September 2023

EGP

(21.-r60,502)

t.230.710

(.r.639.0-{2)

33.770.51I

44.516.8(r9

25l.l8l
( I .039,460)

42.300.491

I1.001,677 86,0,11,286

'l hr \inc \tonths Endcd
rt 30 S eptembcr 2023

ECP

(7 69,9t23071

(!77,t23',)

24t,2AZ

( 2.882.508 )

The Nine Nlonths Ended

at 30 Septcrnber 2022

EGP

(348,628,194)

601,965

(t 3 .t 24,202\

(?72,9-12,1S6) (36r.r44.63r)
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Housing And Delelo menl Bank
\otes fo lhe Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Nine llonths Ended -10 Seplcmbcr 2023

The r"ine }lonths Ended Thc Ninc Months Flnded

nt 30 September 2023 at 30 Scptcmber 2022

Current taxes

Deferled ta-\es

ECP

(1,601,257,956)

sr,40s,089

EGP

(815,450,810)

(9,8 59,413 )

(1.549.852,t67) (825.3 10.261)

15. EarninEs Der share for the v€ar
Eamings per share has been calculated by dividing net income relaled rc the bank's shareholders by weighted average ofthe
common stock issued during the year,

The Nine ]\'Ionths Ended The NLne Monlhs L-ndcd

at 30 September 2023

EGP

4,736,O19,233

531J00,000

al l0 S'eDterrber l02l

ECP

I .986.361.241

53 1,300,000

Cas h

t)ue from centl'al Bank s ithin the required reserve percent.rge

Majority porlion in net rncome lbr the pcriod

weighted average number ol shares

Basic earnings per share for the period

I6. CASH A\D BALA\CES \\.ITII CE\TRAI, BA\K

Non-interest bearing balances

I7. DLE FRO\I BAS KS

30/o9/2023

EGP

I,24I,228.375

14,9.16.314,326

3 | / r2/2022

EGP

997 3a5,655

I I ,-r 25 ,454 ,86'7

E.9l 3'74

t6,221,542,701 t2,122.440.522

16,227,542,701 t2,722.44O.522

<llrrent accounts

lmp airment oa Provisions loss

39!92/2923
EGP
', 5 _311<l ,4O'7

26_455.276,t)12
(631 .97())

3 I /12/2022
E.qE

I at-7 .-7 tt2 ,2 | a
I I,t ,.rzl3 , 

zt t! (),9 I ()

<244.()43)
26.53().1r24-14.) I 9.O5 I .O I 5,OaO

( -_en t r2al rl.rnk( cxclLrd rn g ()btie:rr ory reservc)
I-ocal Banks
rjorergD Ifanl<s

2.J,<J3-r,765,635
6,435.3-71,()29

3 6,447,7 A5
I 9,O5 I ,() r -s,()8()

Non-intcr(jst bcding Lralances
Intcrest bearing t alanccs (F ixcd rate)

7 (J7,742,213
1E.943,232,467

<lun-cnr Lralanccs

4l

1{. Income tar exDenses

| 1<,923.392.2145
.)4_99 t _5-70
32.631.225

26-5341-()24,449
'7s,38(,,4O'7

26,454,644,O42
26,51lJ-O24,449
26,53(,,O24,449

I 9.()5 t -() I 5.OaO
I 9.O5 I -C) I -s.Ot3c)



HousinB And D$,clopmcnl Bank
\otes To The Consolidated Financiel Staternents
For The Ninc Ilonths Ended 30 Septcmber 2023

Retai I

Overdrafts

Credit cards

Personal loans

Real Estate loans

Total

Institutions including small loans for economic activities

Overdrafts

Direct loans

Syndicated loans
*Other loans

Total
Total Loans& facilities to customers

I-ess:

Impairment of loan Ioss provision

Interest in suspense

5,943,83r,959

9 ,444 ,386,O7 7

2,552,848,87r

247,292,539

7.892,21O.793

6.t22,515.4t1
2.1 I 0,665,484

27a,472,303

30to9/2023

EGP

1,136,632,016

t 18,761,146

1o,515,379,202

12,211,930,!07

31/ t2/2022

EGP

965,239,239

95,'7 6'1 ,266
9,O77,tO2,481

| 1,055,697,4t9

24,O42,662,671 21,193,806.405

l8,l E8,359,.1.r6

42,231,O22.117

16,403,863,99 r

37,597,670.396

(2.9:]7.845.018 )

( r 0.160.138)

(3,638,733.r 78)

(r o,r 60,r 38)

3ti.582.l2tt.ta0l 34.649.665.r20

Current Bal ances

Non-cu rrent Balances

8,216,257,210

3 4 ,O14 ,7 64,9O7

9.905,819,421

2 7,691,850,975

42.231,O22,111 3'7 .s9'7 ,6'70,396

* Supponed loans are paid regularly 1!ithin the govemmental plan tbr sociable and economic devclopment.

Impairment of loan loss provision
Movement analysls ofimpairment ofloan and facilities loss provision to customers

Balance at the beginning of lhe p eriod / year

Reversal of Impairment loss

Amounts writlen off during the period / year

Recovered amounts during the period /year

Foreign currency revaluation dlfference

Balance at the endofthe p€riod/year 1,638,713.178

30t09t2023

EGP

2,937,E45,03E

769,9t2,101

(l12,648,E53)

4,302,331

39,322,3ss

3 t 

^2t2022
EGP

2,247,17E,566

644.358,453

(l1,304,985)

9,147,116

48,465,868

42

2.937,845,018
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Housing And Development Bank
\oles To The Consolidated Financial Statements
For Thc :\inc }lonths Ended 30 Scptcmbcr 2021

I9. FI\A\CI-,l.L ASSI]TS.{T FAIR VLLE THROUCTI PROFIT A\D LOSS

30/09/2023
EGP

3I/t2/2022
LCP

EoLlrtv lnstrumer,t listed in stock nrairket

l-ocal comp anies' shares
-I'otal cqu i ty instrument
l_,ouitv instrument unlistcd in stock ruarke(

M ut ual fund certificates

5,439 5.839
5.a39 5,839

10,664,s7-1 32,OAt,269
_I ()tal F,(luirt instrunrcnt rrnlistcd in stock rrrnrkct I O,664.573 32,O4t,269

Frnancial assets porttblios rnanaged by others
Total tinancial assets at fair ralue through prolit
end loss

190.261.632 482-376.01 I

500-9-f(,-0.t{ 514.-163.t19

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS (OTEER THAN THOSE AT FAIR VALIJE THROUGII PROFIT AND LOSSI

3U09n023 3Vt2/2022

Fitrrncial Arsets .t fsirvirlue thrcugh olh€r cofiprchenllre income ECP EGP

Debt instrummt :

Lisred in stock marker 30,078.793,509 2E,141.7{2.1E6

Uneamed interest (1,229,614,4341 (560.7,11.801)

Sellingofdebt instrumq|r with obli&(ion ofrEbuying (4,006,322,7tt) (4.169,86E.004)

Equity inslrumenl

Unllsled m slock market f99i2t,142 195.711.42E

Murual lund s i|lstrurtlenr esrablished e@rdrot ro rhe issued t-at6 57,156,605 47.t47.018

Totsl Finrncial -trsets at fair ralue through olhcr comprchcnsire income 25.099.t.t l.0t.l 21.654.690.817

Finrncirl Assets rt Amortized Colt
Debt lnslruments -al amon ized costi

Debt instrurnenl (listed)

Uneamed inlerest

Provision of dcbt instrunrcnt impairment losscs

Totrl Finrncill Alsets .t Amortizcd Colt
Totrl Finrncirl Assets

Curlmt Balances

Non-currenl Balarces

3,t99,576,60-1

(13,499,098)

(lt7,t0l)

6.224.199-099

( t8,0 t9,794)

(370,98s)

24,72t,7 46,69 t

256,9t4,747

29.616,940,701

243.558.446

3,t85,890.40{ 6.205.808.320

2t,9t5.731,,13t 29 ,860.199 .147

2E.9t5.731.13E 19.t60.499,t47

Debr inlsunnenr with fixed inrerest

43
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Housing And Development Bank
\otes To lhe Consolidated Financial Statcments
For The Nine Ilonths Endcd 30 September 2023

Balrnce st th€ b€ginnitrg of I Jrr u.ry 2023

N€l movement ofpurchases and selling

Amonization of premiun issuance

Changc in fair valu€

S€lling of debt itrstrument with obligation of reb'rying

Changc in lhc provision for impaimtcnl ofdeh instrum€nls

Balenc€ as of30 Septembcr 2023

Erlrnce as of I JrBurry 2022

Nel mov€m€nt ofbrryingand sslling

AmoaizatioD of premiu, issuance

Change in fan value

Sellingof debt instrr.rment wrth obligalion of rebuying

Change iD the provision for rmpairmeDl of debt hstrumenls

Baknc€ as of 3l December 2022

Change in fair ralu€ of equit] instrument at feir rzlue through olher

comprehensirt income

Change ii fair value o[ equity inslrummt al fair value throu$ other

comprchfisrye inaome

Financial Assets
et fai r relue

throuph othcr
comprehensive

income

EGP

2l 65,1 690 827

t.641.545,455

(.141,918)

G59.496.5 r6)

161,545,2 t6

EGP

29.860..199.ll7

(6EI.051,819)

,1.05 2.5I6

( 15 9,4 96 516)

t61.5,t5 216

181.884

Financial Assets
at Amortized Cost

EGP

6.205.808.120

(2,124 ,598 ,2E4 )

4,496,484

181.884

25,099,8,fl.0t4 3,8E5,t90,404 28.9t5,7-1t,,13E

r9,l10.262,265

9 .249 ,9 t 0 ,002

\21.594,5641

(511.0 t 8.872)

(4. t69.868,004)

5.274.871_083

(3 ,443 .22) .626 |

5.175.E90

24.405,l]5.348

5,806,686,376

(19,218.67.r)

(531.0r8.872)

196 .924.1't 3

t.990,596

4 .166 .197.317

1,990.596

23,654.690.627 6.205 808.3 20 29 860..199 I.l7

30/09n023

EGP

l0'092021

EGP

(359.r96.515) i5l0 9ll 095 )

(159.{96.5r6) {i50.91?.095 )
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Ilousing Aud Dcvclopmcrrl Bank

I

Notcs li, l hc (i,n\olidntcd !inrncial Strlrmcnls
l'or'l hc Ninc Months lln(hd -10 Scptcllrbrr 2023

21. INVI,)S',l \It:N I'.S tN SUttSIDIARIIiS Alt),\SSO( t,\'t',LS

ro/o9/2023
Total liabilitics

wil h oLrl

sharcholdcrs'
shariu r

r1s.t!!-U_e-SS

t)rrcci sh.rrnr
DS-|S.g!r.!-!-CS

Sharine valuc

ti( it,

2.99(r,llt5,925

Sh:rrirre v,rlrc

I ( iI'

2.75(,.915.(,91

Ilcvcn ucs Nct ir)con1c

s-g!!!y
lr(;l'

As-s-ss!e!e-s9-E-par&s.:
El-Tamecr company for housing and utilities

El-Tameer Company for Real Estate Finance

Hyde Park for Real Esrate Development Company

Ciry edge real estate development

TO TAL

494.4 t 6.552

5,O7 8,67a,620

t4.55I,t38,554
13.4s3.354.586

324.t94,t45
4,O82,244,969

I I ,4O8,746,473

to,399,t 60,921

208,422,743

462,Ot6,156

t,736,207,681

t ,397 324 ,433

3 1.802.612

99,a t o,7 43

353.667,892

369,553,696

3 50tt

24.A4vo

53.660/0

25.7 60tt

59.577 .84 |

2a3.424,437

| .864.162,915

7t19,020.712

li(;l' t.i(;t) t1( itl

3-1,577,511tt,31 2 26,61 4,-.146,51,1 3,ti03,975,O1 -1 {t54.tt3.1,9.1-3

I hc hrurk's por t iou irr 1hc illcolrc ()l_ thc ]ss()ci.lc c()r)rpxnics iD 
_lO 

S/jp I crrbcr lO21 :rn()r.rr( ol Ir(;l' .12.1.3 I 7.1o(,

I'hc Iirrancial inli)r'nr 1rorrs has bccr cxctr ctc(l llorr tlrc rssocirtcs' Iirrrrcrrl stirtc rcr)rs as ()l .lunc 3O. 2Oll
3l /t2/2022

I ()l rl liat)ilit ics

9!l!!1-tJ

ti(;P

Rcvcrrucs Ncl rncolnc

,Assotirttc ropparics:
I.ll 'l .nrcc' c()rrp.Dy li)r housing a,)(i ul illl rcs

lll- l'.rnccr (i)rnt)rny li)r licul listrlc I rnrll.c
IIydc I'{rk li,r I<crl I:stxrc Dcvcl(,1)nrcrr ( {,rrrt).ny
( ity c(lBc rc.l cstatc (lcv.lopnrcDt

'tr) t?\ L

493,02 t ,10 t

4,835,883,863

t 2,206,O43,I 5,1

t,720,428,271

336.429,426 475,259,362

3,893.E45,330 443,904,'7 47

9,608.-.15l , t 6l 2,22A,t 17,096

6,424.240,498 924,95(J,2'19

56,t 40,403

t(\.475.272
4 53,53 I ,800
255.8t4.69t

54,ta07,o85

260.432.836

I,786,s I0.486

655,1 r,5.286

ti(it, I:(;l' l,( it,

2(,.255,376,1!t11 20.2(,2.ti66.4I5 4.076,231.1t\4 tl(,6.962.166

45
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Housing And Deyelopment Bank

22. HOUSTNG PROJECTS

Lands allocated for housing projects

Under Corlstruct ion p rojects

Finished projects

Housing projects prowision

Total

Balance at the beginning of the period / year
Charged duringthe period / year
Utilized during the period / year
Balance at the End of the period / year

Total lnvcst mcnt s

AccurnLl late Dep reciat ion

Net book \ahre at the begrnningof the period / year

,^ dd it ions
Depr-cciatron ()1-the pel.rod / year-

D isp osals

-Disp osals dep reciar ion
\ et book lElue {t the end of thc period / year

3(J/o9/2023
EGP

1a6,a39,2 r s
(7 r,176,152)

31/12/2022
EGP

161 .261 ,412
<62,579,443)

11s,363,O63

7,2 I I,500
(s,7 r4.499)

( 73 a,8aO)
292,2(J1

94,642,329

25,577,403
(4,496,669)

30tog/2023
EGP

4E5,343,736

1,972,51O,133

322,242,726
(7,602,O33)

3 t /12/2022
EGP

aa5,22t,236
832,608,729
499,546,997

(2O ,942 ,462)
3,172,494,s62 2. t 96,3 94,500

TIe total built up area ofthe units and available for sale reached 33.762 meters. administratlve and commercial buildings rcached
10,830 meters and the lands 2,181 million meter.

Impairmcnt of Housing Proiects

30/09/2023
EGP
20,9a2,462

3|/t2/2022
EGP
2(J,982,462

( 13,38O,429)
7,602,O3! 2(].9taz.162

716.412,9a'7 r 15.363.063

Investments propenies rented for the bank's companies and others with yearly renewal contracts and with depreciation calculated
for the rented units at 57o annually.
lnvestments properties revaluated to the [air value by an amount of EGP 449 million as o f 3l December 2022 by an evaluator with
a recognized professional certilicate and has an experience ofreal estate.
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Ilousing And Development Bank
\otes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Ninc !lonths Endcd 30 September 2023

2{. INTANCIBLE -{SSETS

Computers programs

BeginDing cost of the peflod / y ear

Additions during the period / year

Ending cost of the pcriod/year

Accumulated depreciation at rhe beginning ofthe period / year

Depreciation during the period / year

Accumulated depreciation at the end of the period / yesr

Net book lalue at the end of the period/ye.r

25. OTIIER -4.SSETS

Accrued revenues

Prep aid cr.p cnses

Advanced paymerlts for purchasing tlxed assets

Accounts and notes receivables

lnsurancc and consiErrncnt

Assets rcvcrled to banks in settlement ofdebts
Others

Total

31/12/2022

EGP

488.642,306

47,890,946

681 .27 6.O11

(524,430,814) (467 ,O2O .269t

1.56,845,227 69,5 t 2,983

(467 ,O2O ,269t

(s7,410,s4s)

(396,I53,876)

(7O.866,391)

30/09/2023

EGP

s36,533,2s2

144,7 42,789

1()/f)9t2t)23

EGP

| ,269,157 ,955
74,7t1,464

451,104,601

2,252.182.438

33,279..165

62,44O,.125

5a5,147,507

3t/12/2022
EGP

I,274,596,442
48,848,9 t 9

807,303,820

2,OO1,635,527

I9.O73,095

63.251,425
383,114,r69

5,132,.168,255 4.637,a23,397

4'7
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Housing And Devekrpment Bank

I I

Notcs lb'l hc Consolidrlrd tinrncirl Srrlrmcnts
!or l hc Ninc Months Undcd -1ll Scplcmbcr 202-l

Ii(iP

BLrildin6 &
Consrtucl ions

EqP

'I ransporlatbn

E(j!

M lchincw &
Iirnip nrcnl

ti(i P ti( it,

Intet, ated
us!-e!rE

E(jE

fe-t4l

EOE

fncilities &

I( iP

lOo,O I l.t) lrl
2:10.78(). r 1 I -1-1.1-17.{ l2 5,O59,257

.15.2i )(,_ 2lt I

1 2 .6 26.9-1lt

2.1 IO,796.793

200,0 t 2.(r.r4 62_r. t(,7,082 t-r,667,069 2t0,97l3,(,57

Bnlrnce ra I J{nuary 2022
Cost
Accumular.d Deprcciation
Nel took vrlue at I January 2022
3l Dccembcr 2022
Nct book rlrluc ar I Jantar! 2{J22

Dispos6ls

Disposals from acc mulated depreciation

Dq,rcciolion cpcnsc
Nct book trluc !t 3l Decenrber 2022

2(X'.(' tl.9t4 623,167.r)42

1o9.817,4t8
2,806,O82

r,182,995

46.9 t9,40f

tt,667.O69
fi,O I 1.623

2.4 t3,522

2.715,300

6,0t4,959

2 I O,9711.657

78,4(r6,89O

l2,o 17,354

I1,999,764

I 13,545,965

I f .it?5 r79

lll9.(r5(r

l. t30,ti1t7.478

229,931.006
t4,466,6t4

17,097.860

t46,555,494

2.572,477
r,945.052

12,579.i}33

2.s s5,23 8

t,27{,51 r 6.8 r 8.767
216,:122.-1.tO ('tt.l,{42,OlO 11,565.5t I r7s,88r.992 70.71-r.l8t -1.2 -l 2.(r.r li 8.295.1tO4 t,! 72.-tr l,8t()

B.lsncc at ! Jrnuory 2023

Accumulatcd Dcprcciation
Net book rlolue at I January 2023

2l6.rtt. t4o
2ti6.5 16,739

(tl,Ol2.5U2

17,447.O7 | 69t.22r.194
147,124.O23

76,14o,442
9,576,74{,
6,331,788

41,76t,519

-1S 465,715

2,12 r ,86 t, r5

I,t49,367,34q
216.:t22.34l) 644,442,0tO t3,565,5t | 175,481,992 7i1.7{:r. t 8 t --t,2:l 2.q98 lt,295,lto4 I, t 72,49-1,1t-16

Itilrn.c rr -ltl Srpl('nlrr 2(121

Ncr h(x,k vnlue ,rr I Irnuiry loll

I)r\t)()\rls lr('rrr xceurrrLrLrlil (lcI rc( rnl k)n

llet) I e( ,i,r r.r' cxt)crrsc

N(.t lxnrk valur nl -rl) Set,l(rirlt.r 202-1

684.442.OtO

32.441.8 t3
r.306,r04

469.7o4

35. I 14.664

I r,565.5 t I

I I,OaO. t02
1,72t{.950

l.t 15.950

2,8 | 4.672

I 75,8tr 1.9q2

97,925

70.74',}.1 8 I

I.OOo

3,242,994
2,101,96<,

462.451

l. 172,49 r.8 r()

125,17 /_266

t.675.t51

t2 r.lt{:r, t02

ll(,.112.r{O
t.o52.l{:12

8.295,80.1

6-7 t 7.682

92r,5 r 1

2 t7.315.t12 6lt0.9-r4.75.) 2t.2t-t.O-lI l69.7llt,74S 9.{lt2.5to |,l72.2114r.522

Balance rt 30 Scptcmbcr 2023

Cosr

,/\ccumulatcd Dcprcciation
Net book velue at 30 Septembcr 2023

217.17r. t72 I.OO2.O9(r.458 9:12 (n)8.7 7li

7()1.89O.O.1:l

155.O('2.177

86.0'a t .5ftl
tl,ltl590l
7,255. rO I

54.419.2()I 2,443,741.621
1,27 t,535.099

2t1.415.t12 arlio.93-t-759 2l,2 t -1,9J I t69,7t8,7.15

48

g,{lt2,5fo 1.112.2116.522

26. t'ixcd assrts

2,572,477 t 2,579.f-tf t,l -r0,8{i7,471r



Housing And Development Bank

Current accounts

Deposits

local banks

Foreign banks

Non-inter_est beaiing balances

lnterest bearing balances (fixed rate)

Currcnt bal ance s

Demand deposit

Time & call dep osits

Saving cert ificates

Saving dep osits

Other deposits

lnst itutions deposits

Individual deposits

Non-intelest bearing balances

Interest bearing balances (variable rate)

lnterest bearing balances (fixed rate)

Current balances

Non-current balances

30/o9/2023
ECP

30.o I 5
3,367,OO5,OOO

3 | /12/2022
EGP

285,6()9

3,367,035,O t 5 285-609
3,367,OO5,OOO

30,o1s 285,609
3,367,O35,Ors 245,609

30,or5
3,367,OO5,OOO

3,367,O3s,Or5 285.609

-1,367,O35,O15 285.609

3 | /12/2022

EGP

54.220.O31 .884

t2.433.408,549

1o,334,451,625

1,5t5,121,1Ot

4,855,040,928

95,418,r73,033 89,35 8,060,087

62,t33,400,378

27 .224 ,659 ,7 09

95,418, t 73,033 89,358,060,087

2t.654,372,O31

7 ,497 ,02'7 ,t0l
60,206,660,955

95,418,173,033 89,358,060.087

83,E16,708,150

11,601,464,883

79,O23,608,462

to,334,45\,625

95,418,173.033 89.358.060.087
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\otes To The Consolidat€d Financial Statements
For Thc \inc llonths Ended 30 September 2023

27. DUE TO BA\KS

28. CUSl'O\IERS'DEPOSITS

245,609

30t09/2023

EGP

46,32O,O64,772

12,59I,559,954

11,601,464,883

I,122,625.9OO

16,782,457,524

50,314,415,436

45,103,757,597

31,o42,295,309

8,097,525,900

56,278,35t,824



Housing And Development Bank
\otes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Nine Months Ended 30 Scptember 2023

29. OTHER LOANS

Irng term loans

lrans Cranred from the CBE:

Construction & Housing Organization

Total loans granted from the CBE
Loans granted from the Social Fund for
developmenr
The Eryprran Company for real estate refmance
Ioan
Iran granted to HD leasing (subsidary company)
from EBE, NBE, Banque Misr
Total
Current balances

Non-current balaflces

68.162,400

26.a96,713

909,526,r 50

10'7,922.400

32,77 6,393

1,o2E,930,861

lnterest rale

ta 7 50/o

vot 4.75 'oh1

y"t | '9/"to 25

30togt2023

EGP

31/12/2022

EGPyr

2,18.571.,106 260. t78.547

248-571.106 260.17R s41

I ,27 3 ,156,7 29 1,429.808.201

46,682,885

1,226,473,a44

83.867.881

r.345.940.320

1 ,277 ,t 56,7 29 I ..129.808.201

The bank fulfilled its cornmitments regarding those loans in terms ofthe principal amount & interesr amount or any other condirions
during lhe period and comparative period.

]0, O'THER LI-\BILII-IES

30/o9/2023 3 t /12i2C]22

Accrued interest

Unearned revenue

Acclaed epense
Creditors
Advanced reservatron o{_lands and Lllrits

Down p ay nrents under installments
Checks under payrnent & credit accounts
under settlement
Lands p urchase creditors
()ther credit balance

Total

ECP
1,o22,rJ60,494

12,957,7'74

3't,790,516
70,534.134

ao7 ,064,227
r46,232,r67

160,93a,2O6

s20,924,90r
3,O7 t,t7O,7 ta

ECP
447 ,5 t7 ,435

4,277,4aO

1 17 ,641 ,5 52

49,424,643

260,920,709
| 16,442,t24

309,523,770

61,703,O45

2,O-/7,735,635

50

5,449,681,137 3.445.186.393
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-[hc Consolida(cd Iinancial Stalcmcllls
!'or'I hc Ninc Months l)ndcd 30 Scptcnrbcr 202-1

11. Orhrr Provision

fo/o9/2027

l'rovrsk)n li)r conr rhgcnt lrrhilrrics

I'rcvrst)ns li)r lo ns c('rrrrrr,rrrr.nIs

I,rovisio,' li'r l.grl rl rrs

Provrsron li)r (hsrsre, r(ls

()lhcr conl rngcncrcs

t-1t.7')5.506

I t 0,701r.24 9

2.16 5 ft tt,04 7

I16,082.2:t5

l,1.16l ..197

|.5 to,oll r

I 67.195.1 80

142.998.Ot2

(6,71117t)

(2.192.00 t )

6,8?4,I I O

38.97't.9.12

( 2,5 46,761)

261,255, t 50 ( r 0,lJ22.tn5) (n09 )

tl /t2tztlz2

It,.vision ln' co',rr"rlenr li hili'r'!

P r ovisk)n\ lo' lt'nnr.,,rrrr"'1"'t"r\

I'r ovrs'Dn li,, leltl elJrt's
Lli{{r(',r'.i\

( )thc' coDr r'racrr L.s 29.273.446

()lhcr rrro!iriotr:

r99,(r25.1t9

( l:12.q98.o I 2)

( 74.4 i4,09a,)

( t42,994,01:)

(1.1.|t25.1:13)

.a.o l:. t 87

.11.71o.tl05

(21,1{15.1:ri)

I,(rw,sit)n li,' co"r ing(Lrr lrrhrlrtr(:

l'rcvisk)n li,r loln\.ou,"r1rrncf ls

l"ovision li,' lcgal .l rnrs

I'rowrsron li,r (Isr\r.r ,l:
()rhcr corrinrrer.L.\

( 4.:7 7 147)

30tltt)/21t2i 10/09/2022

24,177 f74
4,O22.18-7

4 I . rJ O?.5 6ll

5l

{2 t,865,242)



Housing And DeYelopment Bank

Deferred income taxes have been totally calculaled on the difference ofthe deferred taxes under the liabilities method using a tax
rate of22.57o in the current financial period.

\otes To The Consolidated l'inancial Statements
For The Nine illonths Ended -j0 September 2023

32. DEFERRED INCON,IE TAX

Beginning balances of rhe period / year

Additions
Desp osals

EJrdinB balance of the period / yeai

Unrccognizcd deferred assets

Delerred tax assets are n()1 recognized for other items

[-oans impairment provision excluding the 809/o

dunng the period / year

Deferred income taxes resulted fronr previous periods tax loss is not recognized unless there is expected profit taxes can be used to
decrease the previous periods'tax Ioss,

Dcfcrrcd ta\ (.\sscts)

DeIerred tax ass e ts

Fixed assets dd lntanAible Assets
Chargc in tair waluc ot.cquiry instrurrcnt at fair
valuc I Itroush orh.r eurnr't(h('nsi
Provisions orher than Lo rs imr,airment losses
Total detcrred tax that resulted in (asset or

(L,iatrility
Nel tax thaa result€d in (asset or Ljatility)

3tt/09/2()23
ECP
I I,351,412

| 17,73-7,O-75

111,7()1,555

a t/12/2022
E<ia
2o,312.911

45,36'',540

6t,aa4,6tz
127.O l5 ()6-3

I27.O15.()63

De ferred tax ass e ts
30/o9/2023

EGP

127,015,063

129,307,851

(15,526,A72)

3 t / 12/2022

EGP

44.469,637

64.135,525
(25.590.099)

240,196,O42 I 27.01 5.06f

30to9t2023

ECP

163.7 42,993

3t /t2/2022

ECP

132.203,O27

52

21lJ.196,O42

2,to,'796,O12

The deferred tar assets related lo other provisions (Provisions oth€r than loans impairment loss) rvere recognizcd. and

this is due to that there is a reasonable assurance to get benefit from it, or the existence ofan appropriate lcvel to ensure
the existence ofsufficient firture tax retums through which it is possible to benefit ftom these assets.

Deferred ta\ 0iabilitiesl transactions:



Housing And Development Bank
\otas To fhe Consolidated Financial Statemenls
ForThc Ninc llonths Ended 30 Scplcmbcr 2023

].T. R[-1'I RI]]I E\T BE\EFIT oBI,IGA'fIO\S

Retirement benefit obligotioD rs recorded iD brhnce sheet:

Medical benellr afler retirement
Transaclions of liabilities during the period rcpresented as
follows:
Balance st the beginning of lhe Period/Yerr
Interest cost during the Period./Yeal'

Actualial losses

Paid contributions

Balance at the end of the period/Year

70/09/2023
ECP

7S,059,934

3t/ t2/2022

EGP

5'7.437.459

75,O59.93.r 57 417 45q

llain actuarial assumption uscd rcDrcsentcd in thc follo$'inq:

Compari\olr Prriod

Discount rate

Epected interest rale on assets

lnflalion rare used in medical services cost

Monality rate (49-As2l (,19-A52) Britishtable

Thc assumptions related to the dealh rate are based on thc announced recommendalrons, statisrics. and expcriencc in Egvpr-

34. CAPITAL

Authorizcd Capital
The authorized capiral is EGP I0 billion, the rssued and paid up capital is EGP 5.lll million rotaling 5ll.l0 million share
each share par value is EGP 10.

l- TIe Balk's exraordinary general assembly approved on 511I/2007 to increase lhe authorized capiral fronr ECP 1.000
million to ECP 3.000 mrllion. and the issued and paid up capital from EGP 550 million to EGP I.150 nrillion *.ith an

incrcase amounted to ECP 600 million.

The news letter subscriplion had been announced on I 6/0 I /200E for the lirst phase rvith an i ncrease anrou nted to EG P I 20
million al the face value for the initial shareholders, and it was completely accomplished and marked on the bank's
commercial ledger,

The second phase had been announced fiom 2313/2OlO till29104/2010 and opeh subscnption for the rnitial shareholders,
and till l3105/2010 for lhe new shareholders for 45 million shares at par $alue ECP 20 in addition to 25 piasters (rssuance
fee) and 3 million shares have been dlstributed lo the employees at par value EGP l0 in addition to 25 piasters (issuance
fec) and it rvas completely accomplished and marked on the bank's commercial register on 2919/2010 accordingly the
issucd and paid capital has reached ECP 1.150 nlillion.

Current Period

IL

t3.91v"

60/.

150/o

%
t3.97vr

6V"

tSyo

53

57,1137..rS9

I,259.233

30,oo0,000

(14,036,758)

5 5.3 17,866

2.O I 7,816

20.ooo,ooo

( t 9 ,49a,243t



Housing And Development Bank
\o(es To The Consolidated l'inencial Statements
t'or l-hc \inc llonths Ended 30 Sepl€mber 2023

Con tri bu tors

New urban cornmunities authority
Rolaco EGEi for inwestments (Hassan Ben

(Day ekh
RIM Co CO. for investment

M isr Life insurance company
M isr insurance comp any

Houses Mutual Fund
EE/ p t ian Endowrnents Authority

2- The Bank's extraordinary general assembly approved on I 0'M/2014 increasing the issued and paid up capital from EOP
I ,150 million to ECP I ,265 million by conribute EGP I I 5 million from the Legal reserve of year 2012 by one share for
every ten share and marked on rhe bank's commercial register on l411212014 accordrngly the issued and paid capital has

reached EGP 1,265 million.

3- TheBank'sextraordinarygeneralassemblyapprovedorr20'12/20lTtoincreasetherssucdandpaidupcapital frotn ECP
1,265 million to ECP 1,518 mrllion by contrrbute EGP 253 million fiom the Ceneral reser\e ol rhe period cnded 30
Scptember 2017 by one share for every five shares and the procedures have been taken to be marked on the banks
commercial register on I7105/2021 accordingly the issued and paid capital has reached EGP 1.518 rnrllion.

Ihe Bank's gencral assembly approved on 30/03/2022 the following:
- Increasing rhe issucd and paid up capital from EGP 1.516 milLon to EGP 5.313 rnrlhon by transfering amounr

ofECP 1,283 million tom the Beneral reserve alld amount ofEGP 512 mrllion fiom rhe retained eamings by 2 5

free share for every share with par value EGP l0 per share and lhe pmcedures have been taken to be marked on
the bank's commercial register on 4/10/2022- accordingly rhe issued and paid caprtal has reached ECP 5.1ll
million.

['ollo\ing are the shareholders who have ovcr than 5yo from the issued crpital:

.,]

Nulrlt€r of
shares

t 5 8.39s,608

53.t27 .655

52.264,4OO

48,295,t70
44.O64.465

39,3 5 s,890
26,724,390

Percentaqe
of

contribution
29,Ato/o

9.99960/o

9.a4.yo

9.O90"/"

4.29"/o

7 .4 to/o

s.o30/o

EGP in
thousands

t -5 8 3.956

53 t .271

5 2 2.6.1r,r

4t12.9 52

440.6lt5

267 ,241

54
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-15. Rt:S r:R\ ES

Ba,lrkinB rlsks rescn e

Legal rcserve

General reserve

Special reserve

Other reserves

General rrsk resetve

Total rcsenes at the end of the period / ycar

A- C(ncral Bankinp risks rcscrr.e

Beginning balance oflhe period / year

Trans t'erred from retained earning

E[ding balance ofthe period / year

B€ginning balance of the period / year
Transferred from retarned eamings

Cancelation ofpreviously reserved for cap ital increase

Frding belancc of the period / year

D- SDecial reserr'e

Beginning balance ofthc p.riod/ )car
llnding talance ofthe period / year

Beginning balrnce of the p€rlod / year
Tras f'errql t.rom retained earninas
Amounts resen'ed for cap ital increase
F-nding tralance ofthe pertod / y€ar

3t to9/2023

EG!
1 .9 1o,97 7 ,4 30
|,2tto,ooo.ooo

3t, t2/2(j22
Eeie

4.1o.1.ooo,o0()
l,o90,oo().ooo

(-1,2af-o22.570)

30/o9/2023

}:G P

3 t/t2/2022

963,271,177

-r,190,977.430

9,344,966

3E,OEO,78l

E9,2r5,810

ECP

aso .44? -'7 23

I ,91O.977.430

9,3.r4.966

34-255,730

89.2 t5,810
{,290,696,164 2_894,236.659

30/o9/202!

EGP

3 | t22022
EGP

3 1.500

(3 t,5OO)

30to9t2023

EGP

450,442,723

I t2,E34,4s4

3 | /t 2/2022

EGP

632,4-38.487

9 t .504,236

126,500.000

963,277,177 450,442.'723

3,t9(J,9'77,4iO t,9to,9'77.430

30to9t2021

EGP

9,344,966

3t/12/2022

E(]P

9.344.966

55

9.344.966 9.344.966

B- I-cqal rcscrr.c

C- Ccncral reserrc
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Beginning balance o[ the period / year

Transfen cd fronl retained earnings

F,nding balance ofthe period/ year

Ending balance of the period / ycar

Beginning balance of the period / year

Ending balance ofthe period / year

(;-()ther Comprchen3it lncomc

to/o9t2023

EGP

34,255,730

3,825,051

3 | /t2/2022

EGP

34,139,831

I 15,899

38,080,781

30/09/2023

EGP

89,215,t10

31/ t2/2022

EGP

89,2I5,8rO

89,215,tt0 89,2 r 5,810

B€Binring brlane of rhe Period €.r
Chahge in l_air value oi Financial Assets
co'nprchcnsivc incomc
Exp(tcd crcdi! loss of debr instrumnls
comprehensive in@m€

Fnding lr{lance of lh€ Period/Ye.r

(82.7EO.S96)

(-159.496,516)

2,EE2,5Oa

72,f69,535

3t/ t)J1t)1).

ECP

(51 t.820.O5O)

t_56t,9,10

45.167.540

30/t)9t2{J21
E(;P

at tirt value throush other

at fair valuc throueh othcr

(-r67.025.O69) (82.74O.596)

(-167.025.069)

fair value of Fin4cBl Assets a( fai walue rhroueh other @hpretreosiwe

Exp<red c.edit loss or debt instrurents at rair value throuEh oths
comprehensiv. income

Totrl Other Co prch.nriE ln@m. ltems

$4212!24
EGP

(491 ,206,592t

I17,711,O15

3t/ 122022

EGP

(llr,7r0.076)

l-561.94()

45_i67.540

36, DIvIDENDS D TRIRT TIO\S

Dividends distributions do not recordcd until approved by the shareholders geneml assembly,

37, CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS

For the purpose ofcash 0o!r presentation. the cash and cash cqui\alenrs conrprise balances due $'ithin three months hom lhe

date ofplacenrent or acquistLton
3o/oq/2o2-\ \91l.]:J_2!4

EGE EqL
Drrc Iiom ccntral tdk 1,2a1,22a,a75 t.(,79.216.4ot3
Drre liorn t,anks 26,529,994.449 18,()49 -246'-/<t()

Financial asscts othcr ttldn at fair waluc througlr Profit a'rd loss 3,9OO'l4(),4611 4.6-79.220,14()

56

)1,71t,363,292 23.8()7.6trl.27tt

E- Othcr rcserves

F- General risk reserves:

( 82,7ito 5(,6)



Housing And Development Bank
Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Nine lUonths Ended 30 Sept€mber 2023

38. CONTINGENTLIABILITItrSA:\DCO}I}IITNIENTS

A- Capitrl rommitm€nts
The bank conrracts ofCaprlal cornr.itments reached 454,801,277 ECPon 30 September 2023 compared to ECP 563.265.424
on comparative period representing in purchasing equipment and fixlures for bmnchcs and updating the core banking system.
and rhe rop management are confidence in generating net profits and in the existence of available liquidity lo cover those

obligatrons.

9/30t2023

FCP

4,634,351 ,961

129,104,E1E

t2/31/2022

EGP

3,545,6I0,386

196,9'76,7 74

(733.670.968) (734.4 I t- 155)

4.029.791.8n 3.008, t 76.005

39. \IU TL' FI \DS
El-'l'hemar \Iutual Fund

The board ofdirectors has agreed on September 10, 2007 ro esrablish accumulated tund wi!h reSular di\idends distribution
called El-Thcmar Mutual Fund for EGP (100) nlillion. managed by Prrmc Company lor Financial In\estments.

The Ccntral Bank of Egypt has agreed on Jan 30. 2008 to establish the fund under the lrcense no. 449 approved by the

Egyptian financial supervisory authority on March 18, 2008
The newsletter subscription for rhe fund has been announced on April 14, 2008, rhe subscription begun at May 4, 2008 and

ended on 5 June 2008 thc subscription reached ECP 141,2 mrllion The bank's ponion is 59; represented in (50000) lcs
amounted to EGP (5) million with face value EGP 1o0/share.

The redemption value ofthe cenificatc on 30 June 2021 was ECP 310.84

]lal ared Fund

The board of directors has agreed on Aprtl27, 2009 to establish daily accumulated mutual Fund lMarvared) managed by
Prime Company for Financial lnvestmenls. The Central Bank ofEgypt has agreed on July 9, 2009 to estab[sh the fund under
the license no, 544 approved by the Eg)?tran financial supervisory authonty on Novemb€r l6 2009. The subscription begun

ar 2l December 2009 ' ith bank's poflion ofEGP 12 mllion that reptesents a share of570 presented in 0.986 ,nilliotl
cenifrcates with a nominal value ofECP l0 each.

The redemption value of the certificate o 30June2021 was EGP 3E 581

5'7

B- ODeratinq commitments
The banl operating commrtments amounted to EGP 63,451,188 in l0 Septernber 2023 cornpared to ECP 70.393.120 on

comparative period that representing in Opemtin8 lease contmcts-

C- ContinPent liabilities

Letters ofGuarantee

Letters ofCredit

Less.

Collaterals

Contingent liabilities
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40. TAX SITUATION

Pavroll tax
From besinnins of the activih, -200?: The Bank's salary tax has been inspected. paid and settled.

The \ears from 2008 to 2012: The Banks payroll tax has been exaDrired. Clairns ha\ e been raised to appeal coutnrjrrees
The \ears lrom 2013 to 201?: Irspcction has been completed, the ux and penalties that resulted tionr lhe tax inspecrion has

been paid according to the law of"excess due dale against the delay'
The \€ers from 2018-2022: The lax in spection is currently carried out fbr these years, the bank presented the annual tax
settlement for these years. the bank pays the tax monthly al)d prepare the tax seltlemenls in the due dates under law no. (91)
Year 2005

StamD dut\ tar
The ban-k's stamp duty tax has been inspected, pald and settled for the banks' branches nll the end of imposing the low
no.(l I I ) for lhe year 1980 (slamp tax). From August l, 2006 the law no, ( 143) for the year 2006 that amended by larv no.
(l l5) tbr the year 200E has been applied.

Thc l'car from t Ausust 2006 till 3l Uarch 2013: Thc rax inspectioDs r^as carried our, and the ux differenccs rcsulted
from the tax inspections have been paid

Th€ vear from t April 2013 till3l December 2015: The tax inspections was carried out. and resulted m credit balancc to
the bank.

The vear from 1 Januarv 2016 till 3l December 20lt The ta-x inspection has been caried out in accordance with the
executive instructions issued by tax authority No. 6l for lhe year 2015, ux settlement template dld not yet received, and the
bank pays the stamp duty regularly on a quaner -basis.

The \ear from I Januarr 2019 till3l De(cm bcr2022 Tle tax inspection did not yet carried out. the bank pays the starnp

duty regularly on a quaner basis.

Corporate ltrcoEe tax:
!9gq - 2004: Tax inspectron has been complet€d ard senled,

2_5:2J-j Ta,x inspection has beed completed and settled. the dispute has been completed between the bank and tax

aurhonty through disputes committee according to the law No. 179 for the year 2016 that has been replaced
with law No.14 for the year 2018 conceming corporate income tax for the years ftom 2005 till 2012. that has

been finalized with signed recommendation from minisler offinance to finalize the dispules.

20Il =Zq!L 
Tax inspecrion has been completed and settled and the intemal commr$ee are completed. appeal committees
for these claims are in place, take into consideration that agreement requesl has been presented $rth the

recomnendations to agree the tax inspechon for the period from 2005 ull 2012

2gl! 2q!Z: Tax inspection completed. intemal commrttee procedures have been completed.

20!li:2912: The bank's has applied its rax retum under tax income law no. (91) Year 2005 and its amendment in thc due

dates and the lax had paid and still did and the bank is currenlly under lax Inspectlon

202L2!22: The bank has applied rts tax r€tum under tax income law no, (91) Year 2005 and rts amendment in the due dates

and the tax had paid and still did not yet tax inspected.
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41. Sienificant e\'ents

Our bank is monitoring the updates ofthe Russian Ukrainian war and its impact on the Eglptian economy and the

effecls ofthe war on our clients in various economic activrties and sectors Accordingly our bank continues to irnplement
rhe mtemal control procedures by monitoring and revlewmg the lcvel ofthe provisroDs as well as the loans and overdrafis
wallel coverage ratio to mitigale any impact on lt-

During the subsequent period , Standard & Poor's agency Lowered Eg)?t's Soverergn mting in foreign and local
cudencies to "B- frorn "B " with a stable outlook, in addition Moody's Credil raling agency Lowered Egypt's rating
ftom 83 to CAAI, with a stable outlook . The bank has reviewed the potentral impacts resulted &om lowered Eg,?t s

rating. and the effects on Bank Financral statements, and the bank's managemenl believes that there is no potential
material inrpac( on Financial state ents

The impact of the cufent uncerlain econonic environment is judgmental, and management u,ill keep assessing the
cunenl position a d its related lmpact. It should also consider that the assumptions used about econonric Iorecasts are

subjec! ro a high degee of inherent uncenainty and therefore the actual outcome may significandy different fiom the
forecasted infoamation. The Bank has considered lhe potential impacts oflhe current economic volaulity ln determinatlon
of lhe reponed amounts of}'ered for the Bank's linancial and non-financral assets, and these considered to represent the

managemenls best assessftent based on the observable rnlbrmation. However, markets remain lolatile, and the recorded
arnounls renurn sensitive lo rnarket fluctuatrons
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